
REGULAR CITY 
COUNCIL MEETING 

PACKET 

Thursday, March 5, 2020 
6:00 p.m. 

U--~-)4~ 

City of 
Wunberley 



1 
 

City of Wimberley 
  221 Stillwater Drive, Wimberley, Texas 78676 

 
 

      REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
WIMBERLEY CITY HALL – CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 221 STILLWATER DRIVE, WIMBERLEY, TEXAS 78676 
 THURSDAY, MARCH 5, 2020 – 6:00 P.M. 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER  March 5, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. 
 
2. CALL OF ROLL   City Secretary, Laura Calcote    
 
3. INVOCATION   Cypress Creek Church Reverend, Jose Abaroa  
 
4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/SALUTE TO THE TEXAS FLAG 

 
5. CITIZENS COMMUNICATIONS 

The City Council welcomes comments from the general public on issues and items of 
concern, not on this agenda. Those wishing to speak must sign-in before the meeting begins 
and observe a three-minute time limit when addressing Council. Speakers will have one 
opportunity to speak during the time period. Speakers desiring to speak on an agenda item 
will be allowed to speak when the agenda item is called. Inquiries about matters not listed on 
the agenda will either be directed to staff or placed on a future agenda for Council 
consideration. Comments from speakers should not be directed towards any specific 
member of City Council or City staff. Comments should not be accusatory, derogatory or 
threatening in nature. 
 

6. PRESENTATION 
 
Presentation by student citizens regarding a cleaner Wimberley. (Doyce Gore, Brent Dodge, 
Brett Houston and Hannah Bennett) 
 

7. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Approval of minutes from the Regular City Council Meeting held February 20, 2020. 
 

8. CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT 
 
Updates regarding projects, communication and upcoming City events (City Administrator 
Shawn Cox)  
 
 

 

 

1



2 
 

9. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

9.1. Discuss and consider possible action regarding a request to operate a food service 
trailer at 411 FM 2325 in Wimberley, Texas. (Applicant Rogelio Garcia Salinas/Tacos El 
Tizon) 

 
9.2. Discuss and consider possible action to accept a donation of Parks and Recreation 

Spring and Summer Guides from Bryan Burke. (Parks Operations and Programs 
Manager Richard Shaver) 
 

9.3. Discuss and consider possible action to approve Ordinance No. 2020-07, declaring 
unopposed candidates in the May 2, 2020 General Election elected to office; cancelling 
the General Election; providing for severability, conflicting provisions, governing law, 
proper notice and open meetings, and an effective date. (City Secretary Laura Calcote) 
 

9.4. Discuss and consider possible action regarding the City of Wimberley Boards, 
Commissions and Committees Handbook. (City Secretary Laura Calcote) 

 
9.5. Discuss and consider possible action regarding the status of the Central Wimberley  

Wastewater Project. (City Administrator Shawn Cox) 
 

10. CITY COUNCIL REPORTS  
 
10.1. Announcements 

 
10.2. Future agenda items 

 
11. ADJOURNMENT 

The City Council may retire into Executive Session at any time between the meeting’s 
opening and adjournment for the purpose of discussing any matters listed on the agenda as 
authorized by the Texas Government Code including, but not limited to, homeland security 
pursuant to Chapter 418.183 of the Texas Government Code; consultation with legal counsel 
pursuant to Chapter 551.071 of the Texas Government Code; discussion about real estate 
acquisition pursuant to Chapter 551.072 of the Texas Government Code; discussion of 
personnel matters pursuant to Chapter 551.074 of the Texas Government Code; 
deliberations about gifts and donations pursuant to Chapter 551.076 of the Texas 
Government Code; discussion of economic development pursuant to Chapter 551.087 of the 
Texas Government Code; action, if any, will be taken in open session. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2



3 
 

CERTIFICATION 
I hereby certify the above Notice of Meeting was posted on the bulletin board at Wimberley 
City Hall, a place convenient and readily accessible to the general public at all times, and to 
the City’s website, www.cityofwimberley.com, in compliance with Chapter 551, Texas 
Government Code, on Monday, March 2, 2020, by 6:00 p.m., and remained posted for at 
least 72 continuous hours preceding the scheduled time of said meeting. 

 
__________________________________________________ 

Laura J. Calcote, MPA, TRMC  
City Secretary 

 
The City of Wimberley is committed to compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act. 
Reasonable modifications and equal access to communications will be provided upon request. 
Please contact City Secretary Laura Calcote at (512) 847-0025 two business days in advance 
of the meeting for appropriate arrangements. 

3

~iliMO- ~ - Ulli:-0:h. 



 

AGENDA FORM 

 
 

Approval of minutes from the Regular City Council Meeting held February 20, 2020. 
 

A. Approval of  

Motion  ☒ 

Discussion   ☐ 

Ordinance   ☒ 

Resolution  ☐ 

Other   ☐ 

 

Budgeted Item ☐ 

Non-budgeted Item ☐ 

Not Applicable ☒  

Original Estimate/Budget:      $ 

Current Estimate:                 $ 

Amount Under/Over Budget: $

 

 

Approval of February 20th City Council Meeting Minutes. 

AGENDA ITEM: Consent Agenda 

SUBMITTED BY: Laura Calcote, City Secretary 

DATE SUBMITTED: March 2, 2020 

MEETING DATE: March 5, 2020 

ITEM DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY 

REQUESTED ACTION  

FINANCIAL  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

  

4



 

1 
 

City of Wimberley 
  221 Stillwater Drive, Wimberley, Texas 78676 

 
 

      REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
WIMBERLEY CITY HALL – CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 221 STILLWATER DRIVE, WIMBERLEY, TEXAS 78676 
 THURSDAY, FEBUARY 20, 2020 – 6:00 P.M. 

 
MINUTES 

 
CALL TO ORDER   
Mayor Pro Tem, Rebecca Minnick, called the meeting to order on February 20, 2020 at 6:00 
p.m. 
 
CALL OF ROLL    
Council Members Present: Rebecca Minnick Place One 
    Craig Fore  Place Two 
    Christine Byrne Place Three 
    Gary Barchfeld Place Four 
    Bo Bowman  Place Five  
 
Council Members Absent: Susan Jaggers Mayor 
 
City Staff Present:  Shawn Cox  City Administrator 
    Laura Calcote City Secretary 
    Sarah Griffin  Deputy City Attorney 
    John Provost  Public Works Superintendent 
    Terri Provost  Wimberley Community Center Director 
    Nathan Glaiser Parks Natural Resource and Maintenance Manager 
    Richard Shaver Parks Operations and Programs Manager  
 
INVOCATION    
St. Mary’s Catholic Church Reverend, Jason Bonifazi, gave the invocation. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/SALUTE TO THE TEXAS FLAG 
Mayor Pro Tem, Rebecca Minnick, led the pledges to the United States and Texas flags. 

 
PROCLAMATION 
Proclamation of the City of Wimberley, Texas, proclaiming the month of February 2020  
as Dating Violence Awareness and Prevention Month for teens and young adults.  
(Hays-Caldwell Women’s Center) 
Mayor Pro Tem, Rebecca Minnick, read aloud the proclamation.  Hays-Caldwell Women’s Center  
Representative, Zoe O’Balle, accepted the proclamation. 

 
 

 

5



 

2 
 

CITIZENS COMMUNICATIONS 
There were no citizen’s comments. 

 
PRESENTATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 
Presentation and consider possible action regarding the City of Wimberley Annual Financial and 
Compliance Report for the Fiscal Year ending September 30, 2019. (Armstrong, Vaughan & 
Associates, P.C.) 
Brian Magness of Armstrong, Vaughan & Associates, P.C. presented the Fiscal Year 2019 audit 
for the City.  Mr. Magness stated the City’s general fund was healthy and showed favorable 
variances throughout FY 2019.  Mr. Magness highlighted certain sections of the audit report for 
Council’s review and discussion was had among Council members and Mr. Magness pertaining 
to the City’s revenues and expenditures. 
Motion to approve the City of Wimberley Annual Financial and Compliance Report for the 
Fiscal Year ending September 30, 2019 was made by Council Member Craig Fore.  Motion 
was seconded by Council Member Gary Barchfeld.  Motion carried unanimously (5-0). 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda, as presented, was made by Council Member 
Craig Fore.  Motion was seconded by Council Member Christine Byrne.  Motion carried 
unanimously (5-0). 
8.1. Approval of minutes from the Regular City Council Meeting held February 6, 2020. 

 
8.2. Approval of Place Two Council Member Craig Fore’s appointment of Larry Ellis to the Ethics 

Review Commission. 
 

8.3. Approval of the second and final reading of Ordinance No. 2020-02, amending Chapter 11 
(Traffic and Vehicles), Article 11.05 (Through Truck Traffic) of the Code of Ordinances of the 
City in order to prohibit through truck traffic through residential streets of the City; providing 
for an effective date; proper notice and meeting, severability and repealer.  

 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT 
City Administrator, Shawn Cox, provided an update regarding sales tax for February 2020 
increasing by 15.76% from February 2019, for a total year-to-date increase of 9.62% compared 
to 2019.  Mr. Cox also spoke regarding completed and on-going road projects, including the 
installation of the Hidden Valley weir grate, the Old Kyle Road mobility/connectivity project and 
wayfinding signage.  Additionally, several upcoming City events were highlighted. 
City Secretary, Laura Calcote, updated Council concerning the cancellation of the 2020 General 
Election for the City. 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS AND POSSIBLE ACTION 
Hold a public hearing and consider approval regarding case CUP-19-017, an application for a 
Conditional Use Permit to allow for the operation of a vacation rental on property zoned 
Residential Acreage (RA) located at 355 Smith Creek, Wimberley, Hays County, Texas; and 
providing for the following: delineation on zoning map; findings of fact; severability; effective 
date and proper notice and meeting. (Applicants Stacie Otten & Aaron Mitchamoore) 
City Administrator, Shawn Cox, presented the CUP for the operation of a vacation rental (STR2) 
at 355 Smith Creek.  The Planning and Zoning Commission had voted 4 to 3 to recommend 
denial of the application at their February 13th meeting. 

6



 

3 
 

The City had received two notices of opposition from property owners within the 200-foot 
notification area.   
Mayor Pro Tem, Rebecca Minnick, opened the public hearing at 6:31 p.m. 
1. Clement Alaniz spoke on behalf of his sister-in-law, Loretta Derrick, in opposition to the 
application, due to the increased noise, pollution and vehicle traffic a vacation rental would bring 
to Smith Creek. 
2. Rodger Marion had written a letter to the Planning and Zoning Commission outlining his 
objections to the application, which included increased noise and unintentional trespassing. 
Applicant, Aaron Michamoore, addressed Council regarding the aforementioned concerns from 
neighbors, and stated a member of the Planning and Zoning Commission should have recused 
himself from the vote on February 13th, due to a conflict of interest. 
Mayor Pro Tem, Rebecca Minnick, closed the public hearing at 6:37 p.m. 
A super majority vote of Council would be required for application approval because of the 
opposition received within the 200-foot notification area.  There was discussion among Council 
members pertaining to the neighbor’s concerns with the vacation rental. 
Motion to deny case CUP-19-017, an application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow for 
the operation of a vacation rental on property zoned Residential Acreage (RA) located at 
355 Smith Creek, Wimberley, Hays County, Texas; and providing for the following: 
delineation on zoning map; findings of fact; severability; effective date and proper notice 
and meeting, due to the use being unharmonious and incompatible with surrounding 
existing uses or proposed uses, and more adversely affecting an adjoining site than 
would be a permitted use, was made by Council Member Gary Barchfeld.  Motion was 
seconded by Council Member Craig Fore.  Motion carried unanimously (5-0). 

 
DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 
11.1. Discuss and consider possible action regarding a request to operate a food service trailer 

at 101 Rhodes Lane in Wimberley, Texas.  (Applicant Alison Schwabe/ Wimberley Shave 
Ice) 
Applicant, Alison Schwabe, presented the request to relocate the food service trailer.  
There was discussion among Ms. Schwabe and Council pertaining to the new location and 
restroom facilities. 
Motion to approve a request to operate a food service trailer at 101 Rhodes Lane in 
Wimberley, Texas was made by Council Member Gary Barchfeld.  Motion was 
seconded by Council Member Christine Byrne.  Motion carried unanimously (5-0). 

 
11.2. Discuss and consider possible action to approve a quote in the amount of $1,894.75 from 

413 Strengthgear for Blue Hole Nature Camp t-shirts. (Parks Operations and Programs 
Manager Richard Shaver) 
Motion to approve a quote in the amount of $1,894.75 from 413 Strengthgear for 
Blue Hole Nature Camp t-shirts was made by Council Member Christine Byrne.  
Motion was seconded by Council Member Bo Bowman.  Motion carried unanimously 
(5-0). 

 
11.3. Discuss and consider possible action to approve a bid in the amount of $2,731.00 from 

Percheron Construction to cut a doorway into the empty cistern at the Community Pavilion 
in Blue Hole Regional Park. (Parks Department) 
Motion to approve a bid in the amount of $2,731.00 from Percheron Construction to 
cut a doorway into the empty cistern at the Community Pavilion in Blue Hole 

7



 

4 
 

Regional Park was made by Council Member Gary Barchfeld.  Motion was seconded 
by Council Member Christine Byrne.  Motion carried unanimously (5-0). 

 
11.4. Discuss and consider possible action regarding the City of Wimberley Investment Policy. 

(City Administrator Shawn Cox) 
There was discussion among Council members and City Administrator, Shawn Cox, 
regarding the proposed change to the City of Wimberley’s Investment Policy to remove the 
investment training requirement for the Mayor in Section VI.D.  Council decided to place a 
ninety-day deadline for the Mayor to complete the 10-hour required investment training into 
his/her term in office, every two years. 
Motion to accept the City of Wimberley Investment Policy, with the added change to 
require the Mayor to complete the mandatory investment training within ninety-days 
into his/her term in office, was made by Council Member Gary Barchfeld.  Motion 
was seconded by Council Member Craig Fore.  Motion carried unanimously (5-0). 

 
11.5. Discuss and consider possible action regarding a City policy to waive rental fees at City 

facilities. (City Administrator Shawn Cox) 
There was lengthy discussion among City staff members and Council pertaining to the 
waiver of rental fees at the Wimberley Community Center, Blue Hole Regional Park and 
the proposed City policy.  Non-profit organizations were already receiving a fifty-percent 
reduction in fees to rent rooms at the Wimberley Community Center.  The policy would 
need to be further revised after additional research on the non-profit rate and the City as a 
co-sponsor of events.  The topic would be brought back to Council at the second regular 
meeting in March. 
No action was taken on this item. 

 
11.6. Discuss and consider possible action regarding the status of an animal nuisance 

ordinance. (City Administrator Shawn Cox) 
There was discussion to negotiate and update the City’s interlocal agreement with Hays 
County to remove the barking dog component and allow the City jurisdiction over the 
issue.  City staff would coordinate with the County on revising the agreement and bring the 
subject back to Council at a future date. 
No action was taken on this item. 

 
11.7. Discuss and consider possible action to approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 2020-

05, establishing a new prima facie speed limit of twenty-five (25) miles per hour for all 
roadways within the City limits of Wimberley which are not an officially designated or 
marked highway or road of the State Highway System; pursuant to City of Wimberley Code 
of Ordinances Article 11.02 Traffic-Control Devices and Texas Transportation Code 
Section 545.356; and repealing the prima facie speed limit of thirty (30) miles per hour on 
such roadways; making certain findings; authorizing the placement of speed limit signs 
along such streets; providing a penalty in an amount of not less than $1.00 or more than 
$200.00 for violation of any provision hereof; and providing for severability. (City 
Administrator Shawn Cox) 
There was lengthy discussion among Council members and City staff regarding the 
proposed speed limit change on residential City streets.  The cost of new signage and 
what streets/roads needed to be included in the ordinance was discussed.  There was a 
consensus the ordinance needed to be amended, sent to the Transportation Advisory 

8



 

5 
 

Board for discussion and recommendation and then brought back to City Council for 
consideration at a later date. 
No action was taken on this item. 

 
11.8. Discuss and consider possible action regarding Ordinance No. 2020-06, amending 

Chapter 4 Building Regulations, Article 4.01 General Provisions, adding Section 4.01.004 
waiver of permit fees for rainfall collection system installation providing an effective date; 
and providing for severability. (Place Four Council Member Gary Barchfeld) 
The topic of waiving permit fees for the installation of rainfall collection systems for 
residential and commercial properties had previously been discussed in January 2020.  
The ordinance was drafted in response to the previous conversation and 
recommendations.  There was discussion pertaining to the definition of rainfall collection 
system within the ordinance and further clarifying the definition. 
Motion to approve Ordinance No. 2020-06, amending Chapter 4 Building 
Regulations, Article 4.01 General Provisions, adding Section 4.01.004 waiver of 
permit fees for rainfall collection system installation providing an effective date; and 
providing for severability, with the amended definition for rainfall collection system, 
was made by Council Member Gary Barchfeld.  Motion was seconded by Council 
Member Craig Fore.  Motion carried unanimously (5-0). 

 
11.9. Discuss and consider possible action regarding oak wilt within the City. (Place Four 

Council Member Gary Barchfeld) 
Council Member, Gary Barchfeld, discussed surrounding cities’ oak wilt policies and 
permitting procedures. Council members agreed that an educational program was needed 
to provide information to the citizenry regarding oak wilt.  Council Member, Gary Barchfeld, 
volunteered to work with City staff on drafting an education-based policy for Council 
consideration at a later date. 
No action was taken on this item. 

 
11.10. Discuss and consider possible action regarding the cleared wastewater treatment plant 

 site at Blue Hole Regional Park. (Place Four Council Member Gary Barchfeld) 
 There was discussion among Council members concerning the wastewater treatment 
 plant site.  The site had been cleared in the spring of 2018 for the Central Wimberley 
 Wastewater Project treatment plant and was currently unused City land.  Council 
 members discussed the possible options the land could be utilized for, including parking 
 space or the addition of a storage building for the City. Council decided to leave the land 
 as is until a proposed plan could be formulated and implemented for the site. 
 No action was taken on this item. 
 

11.11. Discuss and consider possible action regarding Board of Adjustment variance 
 methodology and rulings. (Place Four Council Member Gary Barchfeld) 
 There was discussion regarding the Board of Adjustment’s previous order granting a 
 variance to the Quarter Shops, LLC in 2018.  The specific conditions of the variance were 
 discussed.  Council decided formal training for City boards and commissions was 
 necessary. 
 No action was taken on this item. 
 

 

9



 

6 
 

11.12. Discuss and consider possible action regarding a contract amendment with Plummer 
Associates, Inc. for the redesign of the Central Wimberley Wastewater Project’s force 
main route, coordination and construction bidding assistance for an amount not to exceed 
$83,815.00. (City Administrator Shawn Cox) 
The proposed contract amendment would be for the redesign of the Central Wimberley 
Wastewater Project to connect the City’s collection system to Aqua Texas’s treatment 
facility. 
Motion to approve the contract amendment with Plummer Associates, Inc. for the 
redesign of the Central Wimberley Wastewater Project’s force main route, 
coordination and construction bidding assistance for an amount not to exceed 
$83,815.00 was made by Council Member Bo Bowman.  Motion was seconded by 
Council Member Rebecca Minnick.  Motion carried unanimously (5-0). 
 

11.13. Discuss and consider possible action regarding the status of the Central Wimberley   
Wastewater Project. (City Administrator Shawn Cox) 
City Administrator, Shawn Cox, provided an update regarding the lift station location, 
gravity line, force main line and force main line from Deer Creek.  Capital Excavation was 
set to remobilize on Monday, February 24th, and a line installation schedule had been 
provided.  A draft of the Aqua Texas contract had been received by the City and 
discussions on a rate schedule were occurring between the two entities. 
No action was taken on this item. 
 

CITY COUNCIL REPORTS  
12.1. Announcements – Council Member, Christine Byrne, reminded everyone of the Wimberley   

Valley roadside clean-up day set for Saturday, February 29th. 
 

12.2. Future agenda items – Council Member, Christine Byrne, stated she would be bringing 
forward two resolutions in May 2020 in celebration of the 20th Anniversary of the Patsy 
Glenn Birding Refuge. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
Motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:46 p.m. was made by Council Member Craig Fore.  
Motion was seconded by Council Member Gary Barchfeld.  Motion carried unanimously 
(5-0). 
 
RECORDED BY: 
 
_______________________________ 
Laura J. Calcote, City Secretary  
        
       APPROVED BY: 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Susan Jaggers, Mayor 
 
 
 
  

10

• 1>,,\ , ~.f'.,>\] . o, .. 1· . 
C;;;. 

. .-=ia~~~ ~ -

* 



 

AGENDA FORM 
 

The City Administrator will provide an update regarding projects, communication, and upcoming City 
events. 
 
 

 

Motion  ☐ 

Discussion   ☒ 

Ordinance   ☐ 

Resolution  ☐ 

Other   ☒ 

 

 

Budgeted Item ☐ 

Non-budgeted Item ☐ 

Not Applicable ☒  

Original Estimate/Budget:      $ 

Current Estimate:                 $ 

Amount Under/Over Budget: $

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM: City Administrator’s Report 

SUBMITTED BY: Shawn Cox, City Administrator 

DATE SUBMITTED: March 2, 2020 

MEETING DATE:  March 5, 2020 

ITEM DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY 

REQUESTED ACTION  

FINANCIAL  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

  

11



 

AGENDA FORM 
 

Regelio Garcia Salinas, owner of Tacos El Tizon has submitted a Temporary Structure Application to 
operate a food trailer at 411 Ranch Road 2325.  
 
The proposed location is Odie’s Food Court.  This location has onsite restroom facilities and water 
and electric service. 
 
 

 

Motion  ☒ 

Discussion   ☒ 

Ordinance   ☐ 

Resolution  ☐ 

Other   ☒ 

 

 

Budgeted Item ☐ 

Non-budgeted Item ☐ 

Not Applicable ☒  

Original Estimate/Budget:      $ 

Current Estimate:                 $ 

Amount Under/Over Budget: $

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM: 
Temporary Structure Application – 
Tacos El Tizon 

SUBMITTED BY: Shawn Cox, City Administrator 

DATE SUBMITTED: March 3, 2020 

MEETING DATE: March 5, 2020 

ITEM DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY 

REQUESTED ACTION  

FINANCIAL  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

  

12



13

-Q~ 

1it 
. ·"¼- ·: ,,,y: ..... --....... , , ..... .... 

y ::":::?.:::~:::·-::.£:~~:-·. 

FEB 2 6 2020 

City of Witnberley:.----
221 Stillwater, Wimberley, Texas, 78676 
Phone: (512) 847-0025 - Fax: (512) 847-0422 
www.cityofwimberley.com 

Applicant: Ro . . 
Mail 

Phan 

(If different from above) .. 

Property Owner: \<,lVI n --FaJ..)\ r:: 
Maili e Rd 
Phone 

Temporary Structure 
Planning & Development 

Permit No. 

Date: 
--------

Subject Property Address: __ __.__.___,__-L-.J~L.L...Lo"'-""""-------\ll.>.L.-LL_!__J_J'b'L'CL....µ~~--L-3,_- ~.3,l[_..L...O,dc___ _________ _ 

Purpose/Use of Structure: --------------------------------

Requested Installation Date: ________ _ Requested Removal Date: _________ _ 

Will the temporary structure be served by electricity? 

Will the temporary structure be served by water service? 

YES ~ 

YES ~ 

NO □ 

NO □ 
If "YES" to either then an inspection is required for water and/or electrical service. 

D If service is provided through another meter attach a letter of permission. 

IDrovide a site plan indicating location of temporary structure in relation to other structures, parking 
lots, property lines etc. 

Permission from property owner is attached. YES ~ 

Has a Mobile Food Establishment application been submitted? YES 

NO □ 

NO □ 

NIA □ 

NIA □ 

Temporary Structure Permit .................................................................... . $25.00 each structure 
Inspections......................................................................................................... each 

I certify that the information contained in this application is true and correct and that if any of the information provided is incomplete 
or incorrect the permit may not be issued or may be revoked by the City of Wimberley. I understand that all temporary structures or 
accessory uses shall be removed from the property at the expiration of the time period as defined in the permit unless another 
Temporary Structure Permit is obtained prior to expiration. I understand that a Certificate of Occupancy may be required and 
contractor information will be provided if applicable. Adequate parking, restroom, setback and additional requirements per City 
Ordinance No. 2012-007 & Ordinance No. 2016-007 will be verified by City staff. 

i · Applicant: 0J(;'\ 10 Date: cl z_ 6 I 2 OlO 

City Official: _________________ Date: ____ _ D Approved D Denied 

p 
JJ FcB 2 6 2~20 

Temporary Structure January 2019 

BY: ___ {j)1r ___ _ 



14

OD DaM< 
~ },c~es L, fch~~ 

0 
¥-e__s,L-.,.,v( vf t1 



15

FEB 2 8 2020 
To whom it may concern: L: _____ _ 

I give Regelio Garcia Salinas D.B.A. Tacos El Tizon 
permission to park his food trailer and conduct 

business on my property at 411 RR 2325, 
Wimberley, Tx, 78676 (commonly known as Odie's 

Food Court). He will be using our water, wastewater 
and electricity. If you have any questions or need 
anything else I can be contacted at 
Thanks 



 

AGENDA FORM 

 

Bryan Burke has agreed to be the sole sponsor for our new Spring and Summer program guides for the 
City of Wimberley Parks and Recreation Department. The value was $550 for 500 guides but the donation 
will be in goods and services, not monetary.  
 

 

Motion  ☒ 

Discussion   ☒ 

Ordinance   ☐ 

Resolution  ☐ 

Other   ☐ 

 

 

Budgeted Item ☐ 

Non-budgeted Item ☐ 

Not Applicable ☒  

Original Estimate/Budget:      $ 

Current Estimate:                 $ 

Amount Under/Over Budget: $

     

 

Staff recommends to approve this item. 

AGENDA ITEM: Donation of Parks and Recreation Spring and 
Summer 2020 Guides  

SUBMITTED BY: Richard Shaver, Park Operations and Program Manager 

DATE SUBMITTED: 3/1/20 

MEETING DATE: 3/5/20 

ITEM DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY 

REQUESTED ACTION  

FINANCIAL  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

  

16



WIMBERLEY
 

SPRING & SUMMER
ACTIVITY GUIDE

Wimberley
Parks and
Recreation

PROGRAM
2020

INFO !

BRAND NEW
PROGRAMS

INSIDE!

CONCERTS  IN  THE  PARK :  PAGE  06

BLUE  HOLE  NATURE  CAMP :  PAGE  10

FAMILY  CAMPOUT  EVENT :  PAGE  13

17



CONTENTS
NEWS

PARKS

FEATURES

07

 

08

 

10

 

12

13

 

14

 

15

PLAY

FEATURESWIM

OVER 50 AMAZING

PROGRAMS AND EVENTS!

BLUE HOLE NATURE CAMPS

SPRING & SUMMER

BLUE HOLE SWIM

SEASON OPENS IN MAY

SPOTLIGHT
CONCERTS IN THE PARK 2020

03

 

04

 

05

 

06

MANAGERS NOTE

 

SPONSORSHIP PAGE

 

WHAT TO DO IN WIMBERLEY PARKS?

 

CONCERTS IN THE PARK

Check out our new programs and
mark your calendars for your
favorites like the Star Party / p05

Learn all about our Spring Break
and Summer Nature Camps / p10

Everything you need to know
about our swim season / p15

FACILITY RESERVATION  INFORMATION

 

FRIENDS OF BLUE HOLE EARTHFEST!

 

BLUE HOLE NATURE CAMPS

 

WIMBERLEY COMMUNITY CENTER

Who is playing in the most anticipated concert of the year? / p06

WHAT TO DO IN WIMBERLEY PARKS?

 

WIMBERLEY PARKS PROFILE

 

BLUE HOLE REGIONAL PARK

18



Managers
Note:
Nathan Glaiser
Natural Resources and
Maintenance Manager

Richard Shaver
Park Operations and
Program Manager
Hello! My name is
Richard Shaver, and I
am so thrilled to share
this guide with the
Wimberley Community!
This issue is packed
with new and exciting 

RESERVATION SYSTEM
INFORMATION:
The City of  Wimberley Parks
and Recreation Department is
using a  brand new reservation
system for  al l  our programs,
rentals ,  special  events ,  and
nature camps!  

Go to  the City of  Wimberley
website  and navigate to  the
Parks and Recreation tab.
Cl ick on Programs and then
create an account or  log in.  Al l
program registrat ion,  such as
our Blue Hole Nature Camps,
Family Campouts ,  and more
wil l  now be onl ine.  Our park
faci l i t ies  are avai lable  to  rent
online using this  same system.
Day passes  and season passes
can be purchased for  the Blue
Hole Swim area.  For more
information,  please vis i t  the
City of  Wimberley website  or
cal l  (512)660-9111 .

ONLINE

IN-PERSON
Stop by the Wimberley Parks
and Recreation off ice  at  100
Blue Hole Ln.  Wimberley,  TX
78676 and a  helpful  staff
member wil l  be  happy to  assist
you in creating an account.
Email  parks@cityofwimberley.
com for  more information.

programs as well as some big events! I have
been with  the   City  of  Wimberley for three
years now and I love what I do everyday.
Our Parks and Recreation staff is ready and
excited to lead these great programs as well
as our wonderful Blue Hole Nature Camps!
Go online to the City of Wimberley webpage
and see everything we are offering today!

My name is Nathan
Glaiser, and I have been
with the City for almost
7 years! I am thrilled to 

say that last year we accumulated over 400
volunteer hours for our Parks system with
the help of our Parks staff and our Texas
Master Naturalists. We pride ourselves with
always keeping our natural resources a top
priority and showcasing our gems in fun
ways through our programming and events.

19



The City of Wimberley is truly the most beautiful

small town in Texas, with Blue Hole Regional Park

being the absolute gem of our community. My

family lives here in Wimberley and we visit the

park on a regular basis. We enjoy the park so

much that I volunteer to host the many family

events that Blue Hole holds throughout the year. If

you’re curious about buying or selling real estate in

Wimberley, I would enjoy playing “host” to your

dreams. My consultation is always free!

Whether you’re looking to buy, sell, or lease, I

can meet your needs. I pride myself on having

an extraordinary level of communication and

service, which creates fans on every transaction.

I have numerous references available!

“(Bryan) was always available to
answer any questions and
addressed all our concerns! He
definitely had his work cut out
for him with our family of six -
but we couldn't be happier with
the service he provided and the
home he helped us find! We would
definitely recommend him if you
are looking for a home in this
area!” –Kate G.

20



SPRING/ SUMMER 2020

For more
information and
to sign up for all
our programs,
visit the City of
Wimberley
website and
navigate to the
"Parks and
Recreation" tab.
Call (512)660-9111
for assistance. 

PAINT YOUR
PARK

0 5      |     W I M B E R L E Y  P A R K S  G U I D E

A PROGRAM FOR
ASPIRING ARTISTS
Sign up today for this
wonderful 4-week program
where you will learn from
experts from projectART on
how to paint the wonderful
world around you. The
registration fee is $60 per
class and includes a canvas
and art supplies. We will
meet Sunday's in May at
different parks in the
Wimberley Parks System
beginning on May 3rd at
10:00 AM. Register online at
www.cityofwimberley.com.

C Y P R E S S  C R E E K  N A T U R E
T R A I L  A N D  P R E S E R V E
G U I D E D  H I K E S

BLUE HOLE STAR PARTY

Come learn about all Cypress Creek
has to offer including Texas geology,
native plants, and our amazing
riparian ecosystem  led by a Texas
Master Naturalist! The hikes are free
and begin at 11:00 AM every Saturday
at the entrance to the preserve in
Downtown Wimberley. 

Yoga in the Park is sponsored by the
Friends of Blue Hole  .  The class is
free and meets for six weeks
beginning April 17th at 10:00 AM in
Blue Hole's famous swimming area.
Classes will end May 22nd. Beginners
and all ages welcome.

YOGA IN THE PARK

BIRDS & BREW

Our next Star party will take place on
March 28th at 7:30pm. Come
experience the park like never
before! Expert astronomers from
Texas State and the Wimberley Dark
Sky Association will lead this free
event with high-power telescopes. We
will provide red film for your
flashlights.

Join us on March 8th at 8am at the
Blue Hole fire pit for a birding hike
with free coffee! The program is free
but online registration is required.

21



Friends of Blue Hole

presents the 8th annual

April 3rd

Moors &

McCumber

April 17th

Ley Line

April 24th

 Time of Night

April 10th

Jesse Stratton

Band

Every Friday in April

Admission by donation6pm - 8pm |

Concert

 In the

Park

at Blue Hole 

Regional Park

Sponsored By:

Friends of Blue Hole

presents the 9th annual

Jazz 

Night!

for more information, please

call (512)660-9111 or visit

www.cityofwimberley.com

Concert series is BYOB!

Beer and wine only. Glass is not allowed

22



BLUE HOLE REGIONAL PARK
FACILITY RESERVATIONS
Our recreational facilities are

available  for private rentals !

You can reserve our famous

swimming area ,  community

pavilion ,  sports fields ,  picnic

areas ,  and the amphitheatre !

We also have wedding packages !  This

package includes tables ,  chairs ,  and

the most beautiful venue in the Texas

Hill Country .  Contact the Wimberley

Parks and Recreation office today to

schedule an appointment !

Visit the City of Wimberley website to reserve online today!

23



E A R T H  F E S T

Earth Fest will be a celebration of nature on April 25th
beginning at 10am at Blue Hole Regional Park. This
Friends of Blue Hole event will feature the Raptors
Resplendent: The Raptors of Last Chance Forever. The
San Antonio Birds of Prey Sanctuary open the
festivities as they display their wild and glorious nature
in our popular annual event. Then meet the Buffalo
Soldiers and learn outdoor skills, see things under
microscopes, meet some wildlife, and interact with
other surprises to savor the glories of nature and the
outdoors. Food trucks will be onsite for lunchtime. 

EARTH
FEST
2020

A P R I L  2 5 ,  2 0 2 0
Presented by Friends of Blue Hole FREEEVENT

0 8      |     W I M B E R L E Y  P A R K S  G U I D E
24



Eric Pohl

Eli Cohen Aaron Reed

Eli Cohen

25



BLUE HOLE NATURE
CAMPS 2020

Campers building forts
during Summer Camp!

Counselor in

Training program

available for campers

ages 13 - 15!

Register online

today!Our Blue Hole Nature Camp is a
weekly day camp program that the
City of Wimberley Parks and
Recreation Department provides to
the nature conscious youth of the
community. 
 
Our environmental education based
curriculum is inspired by the Project
Wild Activity Guide provided by Texas
Parks and Wildlife. Our mission for
this program is to get kids out in
nature and experience the Texas Hill
Country in new and unique ways. We
are extending our summer camp to 10
weeks with each week highlighting a
different theme in nature. For
instance, some themes for our Camp
this year includes "Happy Campers",
"Diggin' for Dinos", "Our Awesome
Ocean, and more! 

Campers will learn camping skills, basic
archery, local flora and fauna, how to
conserve our natural resources,
explore native Texas wildlife and their
habitats, and of course traditional
camp games! 
 
We have partnered with several
entities over the years including The
Meadows Center, Texas Master
Naturalists, Texas Parks and Wildlife,
Texas Wildlife Association, the
Wimberley Village Library, and local
Animal Rehab Groups. 
 
Our Nature Camps have grown in
popularity as well as in experience, and
we are so excited to offer this award-
winning camp to the Wimberley
community for the sixth year in a row!

W I M B E R L E Y  P A R K S  G U I D E    |      1 0

"Camp is a place
for children to
have fun in a safe
environment
where they can
meet new types of
people. That is the
reason why I love
camp, it brings
together people of
all different
backgrounds".
-Sam G.

26



SPRING/ SUMMER 2020

W I M B E R L E Y  P A R K S  G U I D E    |    1 1

DECEMBER 2016

SPRING BREAK CAMP

BLUE HOLE NATURE CAMP

Camp hours- 8am -5pm
Ages 6 - 12
Registration opens February 1st
Registration ends March 13th
NO swimming
Price: $200 per child

Sign up for  our Blue  Hole  Spring

Break Camp today!  This  one week

day camp will be packed with fun

adventures such as kayaking,

fishing, hiking, archery, and more!

Space is limited. Registration is
required online at the City of Wimberley website. Parent drop

off is at the community pavilion at 8 am and pick up is 5pm. For

more information, call (512)660-9111.

Camp hours- 7:30am -5:30pm
Ages 6 - 12
CIT Program: ages 13 - 15
Registration opens February 1st
Registration ends 7 days prior to
the first day of each session
NO swimming, only wading knee
deep in the creek
Price: $150 per child

Week 2 Happy Campers: June 1–5
This week is all about camping skills! You'll
enjoy setting up tents, making s'mores, fire
building 101, knot tying, reading maps,
hiking, and traditional camp games!

Week 3 Planet Protectors: June 8–12
This week is all about protecting the
environment! You'll learn about space,
conservation, sustainable living practices,
and more. Campers will also participate in
archery, painting, and observing nature!

Week 4 Flying Friends: June 15–19
You'll learn about our native plants and
wildlife and how humans depend on them.
Campers will plant wildflowers, observe
nature around them, and play camp games!

Week 5 Our Awesome Ocean: June 22–26 
Come learn about how aquatic ecosystems
work including sea creatures, food webs,
and the layers of the ocean! Campers will
create sea-themed crafts, skits, and games!

Week 6 Diggin' for Dinos: June 29–July 3
Enjoy Learning about geology and all types
of prehistoric animals that lived in Texas
long ago! Campers will participate in nature
walks, archery, and an archeological dig!

Week 7 Creepy Crawlies: July 6–10
This week you'll learn about insects,
amphibians, and reptiles. Campers will
participate in searching for bugs, dip-netting
in Cypress Creek, and fun art projects!

Week 8 Nature Creators: July 13–17
This week we will explore the importance of
our natural resources and how to grow our
own plants! Campers will learn how to
germinate seeds, plant flowers in the park,
and learn about healthy living practices! 

Week 9 Totally Texan: July 20–24
This week is all about Texas! We will be
covering everything it takes to be a Texan
including topics on Texas wildlife,
landscapes, and traditions. Campers will
participate in Texas crafts, games, and skits!

Week 10 Aquatic Adventure: July 27–31
Enjoy edible aquifer activities, creek dip-
netting, exploration, fun art projects, making
your own water testing kit, camp games,
skits, hiking, and more!

Week 1 Outdoor Adventure: May 25–29
This camp is all about enjoying the outdoors!
Join us as we go on hikes, learn how to set
up tents, try your hand at Dutch oven
cooking, and explore the park by searching
for geocaches using GPS technology.

27



1 2    |     W I M B E R L E Y  P A R K S  G U I D E

WIMBERLEY
COMMUNITY CENTER
Wimberley Community Center is located in the heart of Wimberley. It was created to
enhance the spirit of our unique Hill Country community by providing a central venue for all
to gather. The versatility of this state-of-the-art facility is suitable for any type of event or
celebration with events, services of enrichment, education, and outreach for all ages.

PROGRAMS AT THE COMMUNITY CENTER
ZUMBA
Monday, Wednesdays, and Fridays from 9:00 - 10:00 am. Fee: $5:00

L I N E  D A N C I N G
Join the fun every Tuesday from 9:00 - 10:00 am! Dance to old favorite
songs and new ones too. No partner or experience needed. A great form
of exercise and fun galore! Fee: $3.00

TAI CHI
The ancient art of Tai Chi engages the students in gentle, slow, flowing
movements. Enjoy this exercise that is suitable for most everyone as it is
gentle, low impact and especially beneficial for seniors. Fee: $3.00

With meeting rooms that range in size to accommodate
large and small groups, a commercial kitchen, and
4000-square-foot Johnson Hall suitable for large-scale
events, this multi-use facility can serve a wide-range of
needs. To inquire about reserving the Community
Center for your next big event, wedding, birthday
party, and more, contact Terri Provost at
tprovost@cityofwimberley.com today!

28



SPRING/ SUMMER 2020

FAMILY
CAMPOUT

1 3      |      W I M B E R L E Y  P A R K S  G U I D E

A PROGRAM FOR 
BEGINNERS IN THE
GREAT OUTDOORS
Our next Family Campout
program will be on March
21st at 5pm. The cost is $50
for a family of 5 and it will
take place in Blue Hole's
famous swim lawn! Come
pitch  your tent and enjoy
adventures such as a night
hike, star gazing, a fire at
the fire-pit, and more! You
must provide your own
camping equipment, but
helpful staff members will
be happy to assist you.
Registration opens February  
3rd. Visit the City of
Wimberley website for more
information. 

G U I D E D  H I K E S  A T  B L U E  H O L E

BUG-A-THON!

Come learn about the Texas Hill Country
and all Blue Hole has to offer including
Texas native plants and animals as well as
our amazing riparian ecosystem! Hikes
are First Saturday of the month at 10:00
AM at the main office in Blue Hole.

Join us at Patsy Glenn Refuge for a 20 year
anniversary celebration on May 8th at
10am! This historic park was gifted to the
city 20 years ago and we would like to share
all the park updates! Patsy Glenn is located
on RR12 next to the Community Center.

PATSY GLENN CELEBRATION

JAWS AT BLUE HOLE
Learn about the creepy, crawlie world
of bugs in this new and exciting series!
During these 4 Saturday's in May, you
will learn the butterfly metamorphosis
process, go dip netting  for macro-
invertebrates in the creek, and more!
Registration is $10 per class. Ages 3 - 5. 

Come out to Blue Hole on May 22nd
to celebrate the beginning of swim
season with a free showing of JAWS
at Blue Hole! The event begins at 7
with free swimming! Please arrive
early, limited space available. 

For more
information and
to sign up for all
our programs,
visit the City of
Wimberley
website and
navigate to the
"Parks and
Recreation" tab.
Call (512)660-9111
for assistance. 

29



1 4      |     W I M B E R L E Y  P A R K S  G U I D E

1 C Y P R E S S  C R E E K  N A T U R E  T R A I L  &
P R E S E R V E
A 7.2-acre tract of property along Cypress Creek
located less than 100 yards from the Square in
Downtown Wimberley. The park property was acquired
in 2001 by the City and features a walking trail along
Cypress Creek connecting to Blue Hole Regional Park.
At the time of acquisition, a conservation easement was
entered into between the City of Wimberley and the
Wimberley Valley Watershed Association.

2 M A R T H A  K N I E S  C O M M U N I T Y  P A R K
A 1.2-acre park developed in 2001 by the City which
features a playscape, pavillion, public restrooms, and a
water feature. This park was dedicated to Martha Knies,
a prominent member of the community who served on
the first City Council of Wimberley.

3 W I M B E R L E Y  C O M M U N I T Y  C E N T E R
An 8,000 square foot facility located one block from the
Square in Downtown Wimberley. The City facility
features a variety of meeting spaces used by numerous
local groups for public meetings, programs, and indoor
recreation such as card and board games.

4 P A T S Y  G L E N N  R E F U G E
A 1.7-acre tract of undeveloped property located
adjacent to the Wimberley Community Center, one
block from the Square in Wimberley. The property is
managed as a bird refuge and environmental education
site by a local non-profit group, the Wimberley Birding
Society, under an agreement with the City.

5 O L D  B A L D Y  P A R K
A 4.3-acre tract of property located off FM 2325,
approximately 2.5 miles from the Square in Downtown
Wimberley. The property was acquired by the City in
2015. 218 rock steps lead to the top of the hill and
provide 360-degree views of the Wimberley Valley.

WIMBERLEY
PARKS PROFILE
We are proud of our Hill Country lifestyle and atmosphere and hope that you will enjoy
it as well. Wimberley's parks, trails, and community programs showcase the natural
beauty and true sense of place that encompass the town. We invite you to park that car
and meander through our town with its varied trails systems, parks, nature preserve
and our Texas Treasure- Blue Hole Regional Park.

30



BLUE HOLE REGIONAL PARK,
A TEXAS TREASURE.

The Blue Hole
Regional Park

swimming area

This 126-acre park acquired by the City in 2005, has a natural swimming area on
the Cypress Creek as its main recreation feature. The park features accessible open
spaces, a basketball court, soccer fields, a volleyball court, 4 miles of hiking trails,
and primitive camping areas for scout groups. Additional amenities include
restrooms, an amphitheater, a community pavilion, a playscape, and picnic facilities.

SPRING/ SUMMER 2020

SWIM!

VISIT
Blue Hole Regional Park is free and open to the public. We only charge admission for
our swimming area during swim season. Blue Hole is located at 100 Blue Hole Lane,
Wimberley, Texas 78676. Only a two minute drive from downtown, this City park
provides outdoor recreation opportunities all year long. All our recreational
amenities, including our swim area are open for private reservations! Book your
next birthday party, celebration, or wedding at Blue Hole today! Pricing and more
information available on the City of Wimberley website.  

Swim season at Blue Hole begins with weekends in May. We are open everyday
from Labor Day to Memorial Day. We close our season with weekends in
September. The swimming area is closed for swimming October through April.
Reservations are required for swimming and can be made on the City of Wimberley
website. We offer two time slots, 9am to 1pm and 2pm to 6pm. Season passes can
also be purchased online. 

1 5      |     W I M B E R L E Y  P A R K S  G U I D E

31



The City of Wimberley Parks
and Recreation Department

100 Blue Hole Ln.
Wimberley, TX 78676

(512)660-9111

www.cityofwimberley.com

32



 

AGENDA FORM 

 

The May 2, 2020 General Election for the City of Wimberley can be cancelled, due to the three 
candidates for office running unopposed.  The candidates are as follows: 

Gina Fulkerson – Mayor 

Teresa Shell – Place Two 

Jim Chiles – Place Four 

The Certification of Unopposed Candidates for Wimberley City Council was submitted by City 
Secretary, Laura Calcote, to the Mayor, City Council and the election candidates on Wednesday, 
February 19, 2020 (see attached).  After the declaration of unopposed candidates is delivered, the 
governing body (City Council) must meet and vote to cancel the election and certify the unopposed 
candidates “elected.”  Ordinance No. 2020-07, declares the unopposed candidates in the 2020 
General Election elected to office and cancels the 2020 General Election. A copy of the Ordinance 
must be posted on Election Day, Saturday, May 2, 2020, at the Wimberley Community Center. 
Cancelling the election saves the City roughly $6,000.00, which was budgeted for Fiscal Year 2020. 

The three candidates cannot assume office before the regular canvassing period would have taken 
place for the General Election.  For Type A, General Law city’s the first date a candidate can take the 
oath of office is Friday, May 8th.  

 

Motion  ☒ 

Discussion   ☒ 

Ordinance   ☒ 

Resolution  ☐ 

Other   ☐ 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Ordinance No. 2020-07 – 2020 General 
Election Cancellation 

SUBMITTED BY: Laura Calcote, City Secretary 

DATE SUBMITTED: March 2, 2020 

MEETING DATE: March 5, 2020 

ITEM DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY 

REQUESTED ACTION  

FINANCIAL  

33



Budgeted Item ☒ 

Non-budgeted Item ☐ 

Not Applicable ☐  

Original Estimate/Budget:      $ 6,000.00 

Current Estimate:                 $  

Amount Under/Over Budget: $ Under by 
$6,000.00

     

 

Approval of Ordinance No. 2020-07. 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

  

34



 
 

CERTIFICATION OF UNOPPOSED CANDIDATES FOR  
WIMBERLEY CITY COUNCIL 

(CERTIFICACIÓN DE CANDIDATOS NO OPUESTOS PARA  
EL CONCEJO CIUDAD WIMBERLEY) 

 
To: Mayor Susan Jaggers 
Al: Alcalde Susan Jaggers 
 

As the authority responsible for having the official ballot prepared, I hereby certify that 
the following candidates are unopposed for election to office for the General Election 
scheduled to be held on May 2, 2020. 
(Como autoridad a cargo de la preparación de la boleta de votación oficial, por la 
presente certifico que los siguientes candidatos son candidatos únicos para elección para 
un cargo en la elección general que se llevará a cabo el 2 de mayo de 2020.) 
 
List offices and names of candidates: 
(Lista de cargos y nombres de los candidatos): 
 
Offices (Cargos):       Candidates (Candidatos):  
Mayor         Gina V. Fulkerson 
Alcalde 
  
Council Member, Place #2      Teresa Shell 
Miembro del consejo, Lugar #2 
 
Council Member, Place #4      Jim Chiles 
Miembro del consejo, Lugar #4  
 
            
_________________________________  
Signature (Firma) 
 
Laura J. Calcote     
Printed name (Nombre en letra de molde) 
 
City Secretary (Secretaria de la Ciudad)  
Title (Puesto) 
 
February 19, 2020 (19 de febrero de 2020) 
Date of Signing (Fecha de firma)     
 
     
 

35



Page 1 of 2 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-07 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WIMBERLEY, TEXAS, DECLARING 
UNOPPOSED CANDIDATES IN THE MAY 2, 2020 GENERAL ELECTION 
ELECTED TO OFFICE; CANCELLING THE GENERAL ELECTION; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTING PROVISIONS, GOVERNING 
LAW, PROPER NOTICE AND OPEN MEETING, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 WHEREAS, the General Election was called and ordered for Saturday, May 2, 2020, by 
Ordinance No. 2020-01 for the purpose of electing at-large a Mayor and two (2) City Council 
Members for Place Two and Place Four to the Wimberley City Council; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Secretary has certified in writing that no person has made a 
declaration of write-in candidacy, and that each candidate on the ballot is unopposed for election 
to office; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the filing deadlines for placement on the ballot and declaration of write-in 
candidacy have passed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, under these circumstances, Subchapter C of Chapter 2 of the Election Code 
authorizes the City Council to declare the unopposed candidates elected to office and cancel the 
election; 
  
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WIMBERLEY, TEXAS: 
 
I.  The following candidates who are unopposed in the May 2, 2020 General Election are declared 
elected to office, and shall be issued a certificate of election following the time the election would 
have been canvassed: 

 
  General Election 

Mayor     Gina Fulkerson 
City Council, Place Two  Teresa Shell 
City Council, Place Four  Jim Chiles 

 
II.  The May 2, 2020, General Election is cancelled, and the City Secretary is directed to cause a 
copy of this ordinance to be posted on Election Day at each polling place that would have been 
used in the election. 

 
III. Severability.  If any portion of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance is held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions of this 
Ordinance and the application of such provision to other persons and circumstances shall remain 
valid and in full force and effect, and the City Council hereby declares that this Ordinance would 
have been enacted without such invalid provision. 
 

36



Page 2 of 2 
 

VII. Conflicting Provisions.  All orders and resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in conflict 
or inconsistent with any provision of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such 
conflict, and the provisions of this Order shall be and remain controlling as to the matters ordered 
herein. 
 
VIII. Governing Law. This Ordinance shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the 
laws of the State of Texas and the United States of America. 
 
IX. Proper Notice and Open Meeting.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the 
meeting at which this Ordinance was acted upon was open to the public as required and that public 
notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings 
Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.   
 
X. Authorization to Execute.    The Mayor is authorized to execute and the City Secretary is 
authorized to attest this Ordinance on behalf of the Council; and the Mayor is authorized to do all 
other things legal and necessary in connection with the holding and consummation of the Election. 

 
XI. Effective Date.  This Ordinance is effective immediately upon its passage and approval. 
  
 PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 5th day of March 2020, by the City Council 
of the City of Wimberley. 
        

                                                                        CITY OF WIMBERLEY 
 
 
       By:         

             Susan Jaggers, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_______                            
Laura J. Calcote, City Secretary 
 
         
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
___________________________________ 
City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

37



 

AGENDA FORM 

 

City Secretary, Laura Calcote, presented a draft of the City of Wimberley Boards, Commissions and 
Committees Handbook to City Council in December 2019.  After receiving feedback from Council, 
the handbook was amended.  A redlined version of the draft handbook is attached for Council 
review and consideration. 

 

 

Motion  ☒ 

Discussion   ☒ 

Ordinance   ☐ 

Resolution  ☐ 

Other   ☐ 

 

Budgeted Item ☐ 

Non-budgeted Item ☐ 

Not Applicable ☒  

Original Estimate/Budget:      $  

Current Estimate:                 $  

Amount Under/Over Budget: $

 

 

Approval of the City of Wimberley Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook. 

AGENDA ITEM: City of Wimberley Boards, Commissions and 
Committees Handbook 

SUBMITTED BY: City Secretary, Laura Calcote 

DATE SUBMITTED: March 2, 2020 

MEETING DATE: March 5, 2020 

ITEM DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY 

REQUESTED ACTION  

FINANCIAL  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

  

38



 

 

 City of Wimberley  

Boards, Commissions and 
Committees Handbook 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Version 1.0 

[Date published] 

39



  

 

 

Table of Contents 

FOREWORD ...................................................................................................... 4 

CHAPTER I: DEFINITIONS ................................................................................... 5 

Boards, Commissions and Committees Defined. ..................................................... 5 

Advisory Boards, Commissions and Committees Defined. ........................................ 5 

Building Code Board of Review .................................................................... 6 

Parks and Recreation Board ......................................................................... 9 

Transportation Advisory Board ................................................................... 12 

Water and Wastewater Advisory Board ....................................................... 14 

Ethics Review Commission .......................................................................... 17 

Downtown District Committee .................................................................... 21 

Tourism Management and Development Committee .................................... 23 

Decision-making Boards, Commissions and Committees Defined. ............................. 28 

Board of Adjustment................................................................................... 29 

Planning and Zoning Commission ................................................................ 37 

CHAPTER II: BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES APPOINTMENT PROCESS ......... 43 

Application Process ........................................................................................... 43 

Appointment Process ........................................................................................ 43 

Notice of Appointment ...................................................................................... 43 

Eligibility and Qualifications ............................................................................... 43 

Nepotism ........................................................................................................ 44 

Oath of Office .................................................................................................. 45 

Open Meetings Act Training ............................................................................... 45 

CHAPTER III: MEETINGS .................................................................................. 46 

Role of the Chairperson ..................................................................................... 46 

The Role of Other Offices ................................................................................... 46 

40



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 3 

 

The Agenda..................................................................................................... 46 

Parliamentary Procedures .................................................................................. 47 

Meeting Attendance .......................................................................................... 47 

Working with City Staff ..................................................................................... 47 

Reporting to the City Council ............................................................................. 47 

CHAPTER IV: RESPONSIBILITIES OF BOARD, COMMISSION AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS .. 49 

General .......................................................................................................... 49 

Texas Open Meetings Act (TOMA) ....................................................................... 50 

Public Information Act (PIA)............................................................................... 51 

CHAPTER V: LEGAL LIABILITY ............................................................................ 52 

Personal Liability .............................................................................................. 52 

Board, Commission or Committee Liability ........................................................... 52 

APPENDIXES .................................................................................................. 53 

Appendix A – Definitions ................................................................................... 53 

Appendix B – Chart of Kinship ............................................................................ 56 

Appendix C – Robert’s Rules of Order Relating to Motions ....................................... 57 

FOOTNOTES TO TABLE OF ROBERT’S RULES OF ORDER ............................................. 59 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT AND REVIEW OF HANDBOOK ...................... 60 

 

 

 

 

 

41



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 4 

 

Foreword 

The City of Wimberley (“City”) is a Type A, general-law municipality, which has an 

aldermanic form of government.  City Council is composed of five (5) Council members and 

a Mayor, which have two-year staggered office terms.  Council members and the Mayor 

carry out legislative responsibilities, such as identifying the needs of the City, developing 

programs which satisfy those needs, and evaluating the extent to which municipal services 

satisfactorily reflect the policy goals of the City Council.  City staff’s job is to assist with the 

implementation and on-going function of the policies and procedures set forth by City 

Council and manage the day-to-day operations of the City. 

Volunteer boards, commissions and committees also help to support the City Council’s goals 

and objectives and are mostly created by ordinance, which outline their composition, duties 

and responsibilities.  The work done by volunteer citizens serving on boards, commissions 

and committees is a vital part of the successful functioning of the City of Wimberley (“City”).  

Members are appointed by the City Council on a periodic basis.  Members have an 

opportunity to affect public policy, gain access to the highest levels of City government and 

to develop networks.  Any citizen interested in serving on a board, commission or committee 

should request a handbook and application from the City Secretary’s Office, or the 

appropriate staff liaison.  In addition to submitting a completed application, it will also be 

helpful to notify the Mayor or a City Council member of your interest. 

This publication provides a listing of boards, commissions and committees presently 

operating in the City.  The directory is designed to educate the citizenry of Wimberley 

about opportunities available for community service.  The City Council encourages 

participation of qualified citizens and is committed to cultural diversity on all 

appointments.  Questions regarding board, commission, committee service or 

volunteering should be directed to the City Secretary’s Office at 512-847-0025, ext.: 26 

203 or by email at lcalcote@cityofwimberley.com. 

In recognition of the important civic commitment of any citizen serving the City, we have 

prepared this handbook to assist members in performing their duties. 

It is our hope that your service to the City of Wimberley will be both rewarding and fulfilling.  

Again, thank you for your willingness to serve. 

42

mailto:lcalcote@cityofwimberley.com


Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 5 

 

Chapter I: Definitions 

Boards, Commissions and Committees Defined. 

The City of Wimberley (“City”) depends values on the input from volunteer residents serving 

on boards, commissions and committees. The City may have various kinds of boards, 

commissions and committees, including, but not limited to: 

Advisory Boards, Commissions and Committees 

Decision-making Boards, Commissions and Committees 

Separate Legal Entities 

Standing Committees 

Sunset Committees 

Advisory Boards, Commissions and Committees Defined. 

These boards, commissions and committees advise the Mayor, City Council, City 

Administrator and City staff. These entities play a key role in keeping the City of Wimberley 

government accountable and transparent to the citizenry and assist in providing ideas, 

feedback, and suggestions and may serve as a sounding board for proposed policy or 

procedure. Current advisory boards, commissions and committees found within the City of 

Wimberley’s Code of Ordinances are as follows: 

Building Code Board of Review 

Parks and Recreation Board 

Transportation Advisory Board 

Water and Wastewater Advisory Board 

Ethics Review Commission 

Downtown District Committee 

Tourism Management and Development Committee 

43



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 6 

 

Building Code Board of Review 

Purpose: The purpose of the Building Code Board of Review (hereafter, the “board”) is to 

provide for the orderly and safe development of the building and housing stock within the 

corporate limits and extraterritorial jurisdiction of the city. The board may advise the city 

council so as to promote the public health, safety, morals, and general welfare, and 

protect the public interest and preserve the safety of residents. 

Duties: The board shall serve as a board of appeals, as a board of review, and as an 

advisory committee to the city council.  More information regarding duties as the board of 

appeals, board of review, granting of variances and additional duties can be found in the 

City’s Code of Ordinances. 

Composition: The board shall be comprised of seven (7) registered voters who are 

residents of the city or the immediate vicinity of the city, with no more than three (3) 

members of the board being residents outside the city limits and extraterritorial 

jurisdiction (ETJ).  In the event that a vacancy occurs on the board that results in the 

majority of the board members being residents that reside outside the city limits, then 

the board will not meet or conduct business until such time as the vacancy can be filled by 

appointment of the city council, so that a majority of the board members are residents 

living within the city limits.  The member that moved outside the city limits, which caused 

the board to lose its majority of members who reside within the city limits shall be 

deemed to have automatically resigned from membership on the board. If the member's 

move outside the city limits does not result in a majority of members residing outside the 

city limits, then the member will continue to serve on the board. 

Appointment of members: 

(1)     Each member of the city council and the mayor shall present their nominations for 

 designated non-consensus board positions at the first regular council meeting in the 

 month of July following their election to office. At that same meeting in July, the 

 city council shall consider those nominations for appointment. Once appointed by a 

 majority vote of city council, the appointed board member shall serve until their 

 successor is appointed. Each board member shall be eligible for reappointment. 

44



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 7 

 

(2)     For consensus board positions, the mayor and council shall submit names of 

 potential appointees for the consensus place(s) on the board at the first regular 

 council meeting in the month of July following the mayor's election to office. At the 

 same meeting in July, the city council shall consider those nominations for 

 appointment. If a board has more than one consensus position, the mayor and 

 council shall submit names of potential appointees for the second consensus place 

 on the board at the first regular council meeting in the month of July following the 

 city council member's election to office. At the same meeting in July, the city 

 council shall consider those nominations for appointment. Once appointed by a 

 majority vote of the city council, the appointed consensus member(s) shall serve 

 until their successor is appointed. Each consensus board member shall be eligible 

 for reappointment. 

Term of members: The term of each board member shall be two (2) years from the date 

of appointment. 

Removal of members: The city council may by majority vote remove a board member 

for lack of confidence, incompetence, corruption, misconduct, or malfeasance. 

Any board member who misses three (3) consecutive meetings within a 12-month time 

period or one-third (1/3) of all regular meetings shall be deemed to have automatically 

vacated his or her position on the board. This subsection shall not apply to 

a board member who applied for and received an excused absence from 

the board chairperson prior to the meeting(s) at issue. 

Officers: From among its members the board shall elect its officers, those being the 

chairperson, vice-chairperson, parliamentarian, and secretary. Officers shall be elected for 

terms of one (1) year. The board chairperson shall preside over at all meetings and may 

vote. If the chairperson fails or refuses to act, the vice-chairperson shall perform the 

duties of the chairperson. If the chairperson and vice-chairperson are absent, 

any board member may be appointed by the board to preside over the meeting. 

Meetings generally: The board shall conduct regular meetings once a month at a time 

and place determined by resolution adopted by the board. The initial meeting of 

the board shall be called by the city council. Special meetings may be called by 

the board chairperson or upon application of three (3) board members. A majority of 

45



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 8 

 

the board shall constitute a quorum. The board may determine the rules of its 

proceedings. 

Open meetings: The board shall comply with the provisions of Chapter 551, Texas 

Government Code, commonly referred to as the Open Meetings Act, including posting 

notices and agendas, so as to adequately inform the public of the time, location and 

substance of business to be undertaken. Meetings closed to the public or executive 

sessions are normally not appropriate for boards, commissions and committees and will 

not be conducted without the advice and consent of the city attorney. All boards, 

commissions and committees must keep at least summary records of their proceedings 

and these records will be accessible to the public. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

46



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 9 

 

Parks and Recreation Board 

Purpose: The purpose of the Parks and Recreation Board (hereafter, the “board”) is to 

provide for the orderly and safe development of parks and recreational facilities for the 

community. The board may advise the city council to promote the public health, safety, 

morals, and general welfare, and protect the public interest and preserve the safety of 

residents. 

Duties: The board shall develop a master parks plan for consideration by the city council. 

The board shall also recommend amendments to the plan as needed. It shall make 

recommendations to the city council concerning procurement opportunities, procurement, 

and development of parks and other recreational facilities in the city, as well as facilities 

planning, construction, and park development and maintenance. 

Composition: 

(1)     The board shall be an independent advisory board to the city council and   

 shall be comprised exclusively of citizen volunteer members appointed by the  

 city council. 

(2)     The board shall be comprised of six (6) Hays County registered voters. Four   

 (4) members must reside within the city's corporate limits and no more than   

 two (2) members may reside outside the city limits. 

(3)     In the event that a vacancy occurs on the board that results in the majority   

 of the board members being residents that reside outside the city limits, then  

 the board will not meet or conduct business until such time as the vacancy   

 can be filled  by appointment of the city council, so that a majority of the   

 board members are residents living within the city limits. The member that moved 

 outside the city limits, which caused the board to lose its majority of members who 

 reside within the city limits shall be deemed to have automatically resigned from 

 membership on the board. If the member's move outside the city limits does not 

 result in a majority of members residing outside the city limits, then the member 

 will continue to serve on the board. 

47



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 10 

 

Appointment of board members; vacancies: Each member of the city council and 

mayor shall present their nominations for designated non-consensus board members 

before the second regular city council meeting in June, following their election to office. At 

the same meeting in June, city council shall consider those nominations for appointment. 

Once appointed by a majority vote of city council, the appointed board member shall 

serve until their successor is appointed. Each board member shall be eligible for 

reappointment. Reappointments can be made to each position by the original appointer. 

Terms of board members: The term of each board member shall be one (1) year, from 

July 1st to June 30th. Members can serve for a limit of four (4) consecutive terms. 

Removal of board members: Board members serve at the pleasure of city council. The 

city council may by majority vote remove a board member at any time. Any board 

member who misses three (3) consecutive meetings, or one-third (1/3) of all regular 

meetings within a 12-month time period, shall be deemed to have automatically vacated 

his or her position on the board. This section shall not apply to a board member who 

applied for and received an excused absence from the board chairperson prior to the 

meeting(s) at issue. Any board member who no longer resides within the boundaries as 

provided above, is deemed to have automatically vacated his or her position on the board. 

Board officers: From among its members the board shall elect its officers, those being 

the chairperson, vice-chairperson, and secretary. Officers shall be elected for a one (1) 

year term. The board chairperson shall preside over all meetings and may vote. If the 

chairperson fails or refuses to act, the vice-chairperson shall perform the duties of the 

chairperson. If the chairperson and vice-chairperson are absent or refuse to act, any 

board member may be appointed by the board to preside over the meeting. 

Board meetings: The board meets on the third Tuesday of each month at 4:00 p.m. at 

Wimberley City Hall.  Special meetings may be called by the board chairperson or upon 

application of three (3) board members. A quorum shall be comprised of four (4) board 

members. The board may determine the rules of its proceedings. 

 

 

48



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 11 

 

Open meetings: The board shall comply with the provisions of Chapter 551, Texas 

Government Code, commonly referred to as the Open Meetings Act, including posting 

notices and agendas, so as to adequately inform the public of the time, location and 

substance of business to be undertaken. Meetings closed to the public or executive 

sessions are normally not appropriate for boards, commissions and committees and will 

not be conducted without the advice and consent of the city attorney. All boards, 

commissions and committees must keep at least summary records of their proceedings 

and these records will be accessible to the public. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

49



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 12 

 

Transportation Advisory Board 

Purpose: The purpose of the Transportation Advisory Board (hereafter, the “board”) is to 

provide for the orderly and safe development and maintenance of a roadway system within 

the city. This board may advise the city council to promote the public health, safety, and 

general welfare, and protect the public interest and preserve the safety, appearance, and 

functionality of the road and bridge system. 

Duties: The board shall hold public meetings, conduct work sessions, and make 

recommendations to the city council regarding road and bridge development, road and 

bridge maintenance, traffic flow patterns, parking, and bicycle and pedestrian walkways and 

trails. The board shall also make recommendations to the city council regarding revisions 

of subdivision rules or any other ordinance or rule that may affect the road system. The 

board will also assist the city council with assigning priorities for road and right-of-way 

(ROW) projects to ensure that appropriate funds are budgeted. The board will work with 

the city administrator to ensure that appropriate cooperation is maintained between the city 

and the county and the state (TxDOT), so that all parts of the road system are planned and 

developed. 

Composition of board: The board shall be comprised of six (6) Hays County registered 

voters. Four (4) members must reside within the city's corporate limits and no more than 

two (2) members may reside outside the city limits. 

Appointment of board members; vacancies: Each member of the city council and mayor 

shall present their nominations for designated non-consensus board members before the 

second regular city council meeting in June, following their election to office. At the same 

meeting in June, the city council shall consider those nominations for appointment. Once 

appointed by a majority vote of city council, the appointed board member shall serve until 

their successor is appointed. Each board member shall be eligible for reappointment. 

Reappointments can be made to each position by the original appointer. 

Terms of board members: The term of each board member shall be one (1) year, from 

July 1st to June 30th. Members can serve for a limit of four (4) consecutive terms. 

 

50



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 13 

 

Removal of board members: Board members serve at the pleasure of city council. The 

city council may by majority vote remove a board member at any time. Any board member 

who misses three (3) consecutive meetings, or one-third (1/3) of all regular meetings within 

a 12-month time period shall be deemed to have automatically vacated his or her position 

on the board. This section shall not apply to a board member who applied for and received 

an excused absence from the board chairperson prior to the meeting(s) at issue. Any board 

member who no longer resides within the boundaries as provided above, is deemed to have 

automatically vacated his or her position on the board. 

Board officers: From among its members the board shall elect its officers, those being the 

chairperson, vice-chairperson, and secretary. Officers shall be elected for a one (1) year 

term. The board chairperson shall preside over all meetings and may vote. If the chairperson 

fails or refuses to act, the vice-chairperson shall perform the duties of the chairperson. If 

the chairperson and vice-chairperson are absent or refuse to act, any board member may 

be appointed by the board to preside over the meeting. 

Board meetings: The board meets on the second Wednesday of each month at 9:00 a.m. 

at Wimberley City Hall.  Special meetings may be called by the board chairperson or upon 

application of three (3) board members. A quorum shall be comprised of four (4) board 

members. The board may determine the rules of its proceedings. 

Open meetings: The board shall comply with the provisions of Chapter 551, Texas 

Government Code, commonly referred to as the Open Meetings Act, including posting 

notices and agendas, so as to adequately inform the public of the time, location and 

substance of business to be undertaken. Meetings closed to the public or executive sessions 

are normally not appropriate for boards, commissions and committees and will not be 

conducted without the advice and consent of the city attorney. All boards, commissions and 

committees must keep at least summary records of their proceedings and these records will 

be accessible to the public. 

 

 

 

51



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 14 

 

Water and Wastewater Advisory Board 

Purpose: The purpose the Water and Wastewater Advisory Board (hereafter, the “board”) 

is to provide for the orderly and safe development of watershed management strategies 

and participate in regional planning specifically for water, wastewater, and stormwater 

management. This board may advise the city council to promote the public health, safety, 

and general welfare, and protect the public interest and preserve water safety and water 

quality and quantity. 

Duties: The board shall hold public meetings, conduct work sessions, and make 

recommendations to the city council regarding water and wastewater issues considered by 

the city council. The board shall also make recommendations to the city council regarding 

revisions of subdivision rules, the waterway overlay district, or any other ordinance or rule 

that may affect water quality or quantity, and regarding policies having to do with 

ordinances or rules pertaining to water supply, wastewater treatment, watershed 

protection, stormwater management, and FEMA issues. 

Composition: The board shall be comprised of seven (7) individuals who reside within 

the city limits and/or reside outside the city limits but within the 78676-zip code. A 

minimum of four (4) members shall be appointed who must reside within the city limits. 

Appointment of members: 

(1)     Each member of the city council and the mayor shall present their    

 nominations for designated non-consensus board positions at the first regular  

 council meeting in the month of July following their election to office. At that   

 same  meeting in July, the city council shall consider those nominations for   

 appointment. Once appointed by a majority vote of city council, the    

 appointed board member shall serve until their successor is appointed. Each   

 board member shall be eligible for reappointment. 

(2)     For consensus board positions, the mayor and council shall submit names of   

 potential appointees for the consensus place(s) on the board at the first   

 regular council meeting in the month of July following the mayor's election to  

 office. At the same meeting in July, the city council shall consider those   

 nominations for appointment. If a board has more than one consensus position, the 

52



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 15 

 

mayor and council shall submit names of potential appointees for the  second consensus 

place on the board at the first regular council meeting in the month of July following the 

city council member's election to office. At the same meeting in July, the city council shall 

consider those nominations for appointment. Once appointed by a majority vote of the 

city council, the appointed consensus member(s) shall serve until their successor is 

appointed. Each consensus board member shall be eligible for reappointment. 

Term of members: The term of each board member shall be two (2) years from the date 

of appointment. 

Removal of members: The city council may by majority vote remove a board member 

for lack of confidence, incompetence, corruption, misconduct, or malfeasance. Any board 

member who misses three (3) consecutive meetings within a 12-month time period or 

one-third (1/3) of all regular meetings shall be deemed to have automatically vacated his 

or her position on the board. This section shall not apply to a board member who applied 

for and received an excused absence from the board chairperson prior to the meeting(s) 

at issue. 

Officers: From among its members the board shall elect its officers in September, who 

shall take office in October, those being the chairperson, vice-chairperson, and secretary. 

Officers shall be elected for terms of one (1) year. The board chairperson shall preside 

over all meetings and may vote. If the chairperson fails or refuses to act, the vice-

chairperson shall perform the duties of the chairperson. If the chairperson and vice-

chairperson are absent or fail to act, any board member may be appointed by the board 

to preside over the meeting. 

Meetings generally: The board shall conduct regular meetings at least once a month at 

a time and place determined by resolution adopted by the board. Special meetings may 

be called by the board chairperson or upon application of three (3) board members. A 

majority of the board shall constitute a quorum. The board may determine the rules of its 

proceedings. 

 

 

53



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 16 

 

Open meetings: The board shall comply with the provisions of Chapter 551, Texas 

Government Code, commonly referred to as the Open Meetings Act, including posting 

notices and agendas, so as to adequately inform the public of the time, location and 

substance of business to be undertaken. Meetings closed to the public or executive 

sessions are normally not appropriate for boards, commissions and committees and will 

not be conducted without the advice and consent of the city attorney. All boards, 

commissions and committees must keep at least summary records of their proceedings 

and these records will be accessible to the public. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

54



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 17 

 

Ethics Review Commission 

Jurisdiction: The Ethics Review Commission (hereafter, the “commission”) has jurisdiction 

over ethics complaints as described in the City’s Code of Ordinances involving city officials 

and city employees and may advise the city council from time to time regarding ethical 

matters, so as to promote personal integrity, honesty and ethical conduct in all matters 

conducted by the city. 

Composition; terms; officers: The commission is to be composed of seven (7) members 

each serving a two-year term. Each member of the city council and the mayor shall 

nominate one (1) member to the commission. A seventh member shall be appointed by 

majority vote of the city council. If a vacancy occurs on the commission, the council member 

place or the mayor who made the nomination for the vacant place shall nominate a person 

to fill the unexpired term. Nominated members become appointed members upon a simple 

majority vote of the council. Each commission member shall take an oath of office 

comparable to that taken by council members. Ethics commissioners shall serve without 

compensation but shall be eligible to be reimbursed for actual expenses in accordance with 

the city's policy. 

Terms of commissioners: Commissioners shall serve two-year terms and may be 

reappointed. Each commissioner that was appointed prior to the effective date of this 

section shall continue to serve as a commissioner and for the duration of the term of their 

original appointment. The council may by majority vote remove a commissioner with or 

without cause. Any commissioner who misses three (3) consecutive meetings within a 

twelve (12) month time period or one-third (1/3) of all regular meetings shall be deemed 

to have automatically vacated his or her position on the commission. This section shall not 

apply to a commissioner who applied for and received an excused absence from the 

commission chairperson prior to the meeting(s) at issue. Any commissioner who no longer 

resides within the corporate boundaries of the city is deemed to have automatically vacated 

his or her position on the commission. 

Officers: From among its members the commission shall elect its officers, those being the 

chairperson, vice-chairperson, and secretary. Officers shall be elected for terms of one (1) 

year. The chairperson shall preside over all meetings and may vote. If the chairperson fails 

or refuses to act, the vice-chairperson shall perform the duties of the chairperson. If the 

55



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 18 

 

chairperson and vice-chairperson are absent, any commissioner may be appointed by the 

remaining members of the commission to preside over the meeting. 

Qualifications: 

(A)     Commission members must be registered voters who are residents of the city. 

(B)     No member of the ethics commission may be: 

 (i)      A member of the city council, a member of the planning and zoning   

  commission, a member of the board of adjustment, a city employee, a city  

  official, or the spouse of any of the foregoing; 

 (ii)     A candidate for elected public office for the city; 

 (iii)     Anyone having a substantial business interest or substantial interest in real  

  property with any council member, city official, city employee, or commission 

  member specified under subsection (i) above; 

 (iv)     Anyone who has been a paid campaign worker or paid political consultant for 

  any council or mayoral candidate; or 

 (v)     A convicted felon. 

Conflicts of interest: An ethics commissioner shall not vote or participate in any matter 

involving a person listed in Section 2.07.002(c)(4) of the City’s Code of Ordinances, nor on 

any matter or involving any person that the ethics commissioner has an economic interest 

in or with. 

Procedures: 

(1)     The commission shall have the authority to review and investigate complaints filed 

 in accordance with this article and issue a written finding and ruling of the 

 commission's determination when appropriate. 

(2)     The commission shall determine its rules and procedures, which shall be submitted 

 in writing for approval of the council. The commission shall establish, amend and 

 rescind its procedures and maintain proper records of its proceedings and its 

56

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/DocViewer.jsp?doccode=z20000008&z2collection=wimberley#JD_2.07.002


Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 19 

 

 opinions. The commission shall meet as often as necessary to fulfill its responsibilities 

 but must meet at least once a year to review the code of ethics. 

(3)    The commission shall have the power to investigate, request and gather evidence 

 necessary to determine if a violation has occurred. The commission shall have the 

 power to enforce the provisions of this article, including recommending to the council 

 the prosecution of alleged violators. Nothing in this code shall be construed, however, 

 to prevent complainants, including the city, from instituting direct legal action on 

 their own behalf through the appropriate judicial authority. 

(4)     Service on the commission does not preclude a member from filing a complaint with 

 the commission. The commission member filing the complaint must recuse 

 himself/herself from the commission procedure. 

Code of ethics review: The commission shall make recommendations to the council 

regarding revisions and changes to the code of ethics. 

City support: 

(1)    The commission may seek any necessary assistance from the council and city 

 administrator regarding financial support needed to carry out the 

 commission's duties. 

(2)     The commission shall receive from the city such administrative support as reasonably 

 necessary to carry out the duties of the commission and to assist the commission 

 with maintenance of its records in compliance with the city's records retention 

 schedule. 

Meetings generally: The commission meets annually in September, and as needed. 

Open meetings: The commission shall comply with the provisions of Chapter 551, Texas 

Government Code, commonly referred to as the Open Meetings Act, including posting 

notices and agendas, so as to adequately inform the public of the time, location and 

substance of business to be undertaken. Meetings closed to the public or executive 

sessions are normally not appropriate for boards, commissions and committees and will 

not be conducted without the advice and consent of the city attorney. All boards, 

57



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 20 

 

commissions and committees must keep at least summary records of their proceedings 

and these records will be accessible to the public. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

58



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 21 

 

Downtown District Committee 

Purpose: The purposes of the Downtown District Committee (hereafter, the “committee”) 

are to stimulate downtown economic development in the city by encouraging cooperation 

and building leadership in the business community; creating a positive image for downtown 

by promoting the downtown as an exciting place to live, shop, work and invest; and guide 

and assist in improving the downtown appearance, mobility, safety, comfort, and 

environmental protection. 

Duties: The board shall hold public meetings, conduct work sessions, and make 

recommendations to the city council regarding improvements to the downtown area, 

including but not limited to mobility, signage, facilities, and the development of a downtown 

master plan. 

Composition: A member of the committee shall have a known and demonstrated interest, 

knowledge or expertise relevant to the development and revitalization of downtown. The 

committee shall have seven (7) members, comprised of the following: 

(1)     Three (3) downtown property or business owners. 

(2)     Two (2) residents of the city. 

(3)     One (1) Wimberley Valley Chamber Representative. 

(4)     One (1) merchant's association member. 

Appointment of members; vacancies: The members of the committee shall be appointed 

by consensus and, shall serve at the pleasure of the city council. The primary consideration 

in appointing committee members shall be to provide the committee with the needed 

technical, professional, financial, business, or administrative expertise. 

Terms of members: The term of each committee member shall be two (2) years from the 

date of appointment. 

Removal of members: Committee members serve at the pleasure of city council. The city 

council may by majority vote remove a committee member at any time. Any committee 

member who misses three (3) consecutive meetings, or one-third (1/3) of all regular 

59



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 22 

 

meetings within a 12-month time period shall be deemed to have automatically vacated his 

or her position on the committee. This section shall not apply to a committee member who 

applied for and received an excused absence from the committee chairperson prior to the 

meeting(s) at issue. Any committee member who no longer satisfies the requirements as 

provided above, is deemed to have automatically vacated his or her position on the 

committee. 

Officers: From among its members the committee shall elect its officers, those being the 

chairperson, vice-chairperson, and secretary. Officers shall be elected for a one (1) year 

term. The committee chairperson shall preside over all meetings and may vote. If the 

chairperson fails or refuses to act, the vice-chairperson shall perform the duties of the 

chairperson. If the chairperson and vice-chairperson are absent or refuse to act, any 

committee member may be appointed by the committee to preside over the meeting. 

Meetings: The committee meets on the second Wednesday of each month at 6:00 p.m. at 

Wimberley City Hall.  Special meetings may be called by the committee chairperson or upon 

application of three (3) committee members. A quorum shall be comprised of four (4) 

committee members. The committee may determine the rules of its proceedings. 

Open meetings: The committee shall comply with the provisions of Chapter 551, Texas 

Government Code, commonly referred to as the Open Meetings Act, including posting 

notices and agendas, so as to adequately inform the public of the time, location and 

substance of business to be undertaken. Meetings closed to the public or executive sessions 

are normally not appropriate for committees, commissions and committees and will not be 

conducted without the advice and consent of the city attorney. All committees, commissions 

and committees must keep at least summary records of their proceedings and these records 

will be accessible to the public. 

Subcommittees: The committee may create special committees with limited purposes or 

goals to perform specific functions and activities specified by the committee. At the 

beginning of each calendar year the committee shall determine if any special committees 

then in existence need to continue the work assigned to them. No special committee shall 

be comprised of more than two (2) members of the downtown committee. Special 

committee may recruit members from interested parties who have a known and 

demonstrated interest, knowledge or expertise relevant to the special committee's function. 

60



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 23 

 

Tourism Management and Development Committee 

Purpose: The seven-member Tourism Management and Development Committee 

(hereafter, the “committee”), shall oversee the development, implementation, 

management, and collection of any public funds for use in delivering, executing, 

monitoring, and overseeing the city's tourism. 

Membership: 

(1)     Four (4) lodging operator representatives nominated by the Wimberley Valley  

 Tourism and Lodging Association Board. 

(2)     One (1) citizen representative nominated by the city council. 

(3)     One (1) arts/historical attraction representative nominated by the Wimberley  

 Valley Arts and Cultural Alliance Board. 

(4)     One (1) merchants association representative nominated by the Wimberley   

 Merchants Association Board. 

(5)     Each committee member shall be appointed to a two-year term and may be   

 reappointed by the council for two (2) additional consecutive two-year terms.  

 After serving a third consecutive two-year term, an individual is not eligible   

 for reappointment for two (2) years. 

(6)     Each responsible organization (Wimberley Valley Tourism and Lodging    

 Association Board, Wimberley Valley Arts and Cultural Alliance Board, and   

 Wimberley Merchants Association Board) shall provide its slate of nominees   

 to the city council no later than thirty (30) days from the effective date of the  

 ordinance from which this section derives; otherwise, the council may    

 nominate committee members of its own choosing to represent the    

 organization that did not nominate its own candidate. 

(7)     All nominees must be representatives of a business or entity that is located   

 within the city limits or extraterritorial jurisdiction of the city. The citizen   

 representative nominee must live within the city limits or extraterritorial   

 jurisdiction of the city. 

61



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 24 

 

(8)     Appointment to the committee is subject to the approval of a majority vote   

 of the council. Members shall serve at the pleasure of the council, and any   

 member may be removed by majority vote of the council at any time. In the   

 event of removal, the responsible organization shall provide a replacement   

 nominee no later than thirty (30) days from the date of the vacancy;    

 otherwise, the council will nominate a person of its own choosing to fill the   

 vacant position as representative for that organization. 

Responsibilities: The committee is responsible for the following: 

(1)     Setting the five-year tourism goals for the city that are consistent and aligned with 

 the city's comprehensive plan and seeking approval of the same from the city 

 council. 

(2)     Creating a comprehensive tourism plan that is consistent and aligned with the city's 

 comprehensive plan and that balances the needs of citizens and businesses. 

(3)     Establishing an annual budget to bring to life the tourism plan. 

(4)     Ensuring any initiatives implemented from the comprehensive tourism plan are self-

 sustaining and self-funding in twelve (12) or less months after implementation. 

(5)     Shutting down, cancelling, and terminating initiatives that do not become self-

 sustaining and self-funding in twelve (12) or less months after implementation. 

(6)     Recommending to city council what, if any, combination of public, grant, and 

 private funding vehicles should be used to implement the comprehensive tourism 

 plan. 

(7)     Ensuring no single industry, association, organization, and/or interest group is 

 taxed or burdened solely or disproportionately for the benefit of others as a means 

 to fund the comprehensive tourism plan initiatives. 

(8)     Overseeing and recommending to the city council what to do with the remaining 

 HOT balance fund collected under the repealed city Hotel Occupancy Tax Ordinance 

 2015-017 and its amendments. 

62



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 25 

 

(9)     Ensuring any HOT funds used from the remaining HOT balance fund are strictly 

 used as authorized by Chapter 351 of the Texas Tax Code. 

(10)   Identifying, screening, selecting, managing, and terminating third party       

 consultants, vendors, and contractors to assist in with tourism plan initiatives. 

(11)    Overseeing the timely and proper execution of the tourism plan. 

(12)    Creating a scorecard to measure progress and performance results of the tourism  

  plan and supporting initiatives. 

(13)    Reporting quarterly progress and results to the city council. 

(14)    Tracking, monitoring, and reporting results and impacts to the community. 

(15)    Reporting to city council and the city's ethics committee any attempts to politicize  

 and/or undermine the tourism management and development ordinance,     

 committee, and/or process. 

(16)   Working with city staff and other city committees to communicate, coordinate, and 

 integrate efforts and initiatives to achieve the tourism goals and plans. 

(17)   The committee shall oversee, and review revenue received by the city through the 

 hotel occupancy tax and shall make recommendations to the city council regarding 

 appropriate expenditures. 

(18)   All committee recommendations are subject to approval of the council. The 

 committee shall not spend any money or authorize the expenditure of any money. 

(19)   Reviewing and formally recommending appropriate action for any city council 

 expenditures of tourism plan and budget funds not initially recommended by the 

 committee. 

Procedures: 

(1)     All meetings of the committee shall satisfy the requirements of the Texas Open 

 Meetings Act. 

 

63



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 26 

 

(2)     The committee shall elect a chair, vice-chair, and secretary on an annual basis. 

(3)     All committee recommendations to the council shall require an affirmative vote of 

 the majority of all members of the committee. 

Sunset review: 

(1)     Frequency of review. On an annual basis from the effective date of the ordinance 

 from which this section derives, the committee and council shall conduct a sunset 

 review of the tourism management and development ordinance, initiatives, 

 programs, and the work of the committee. 

(2)     Review criteria. The purpose of the sunset review shall be to determine whether a 

 public and business need exists for the continuation of the tourism management 

 and development ordinance, initiatives, programs, and the work of the committee. 

 The council may consider the following criteria as part of its review: 

 (A)     The benefit(s) enjoyed by the city and the city's tourism industry as a result  

  of the tourism management and development ordinance, initiatives,   

  programs, and the work of the committee; 

 (B)     Performance and compliance with applicable statutes and regulations; 

 (C)     The efficiency with which the committee operates; 

 (D)     The extent to which the tourism management and development ordinance,  

  initiatives, programs, and the work of the committee, and/or the committee  

  is needed or used; 

 (E)     The extent to which the committee has encouraged participation by the  

  public in making its decisions, as opposed to participation solely by an   

  occupation,  interest group, organization, business or an institution, and the  

  extent to which the public participation has resulted in decisions compatible  

  with the objectives established by the council for the committee; 

 (F)     The extent to which the committee has complied with the Open Meetings Act; 

 (G)     The extent to which tourism goals have been achieved; 

64



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 27 

 

 (H)     The extent to which tourism plan initiatives have become self-sustaining and  

  self-funding; 

 (I)     The economic and financial benefits achieved by the participants funding the  

  tourism plan and initiatives; 

 (J)     Interest by the citizens in continuing such tourism efforts and initiatives; 

 (K)     Any other criteria identified by the committee and/or council. 

Meetings generally: The committee meets on an as needed basis. 

Open meetings: The committee shall comply with the provisions of Chapter 551, Texas 

Government Code, commonly referred to as the Open Meetings Act, including posting 

notices and agendas, so as to adequately inform the public of the time, location and 

substance of business to be undertaken. Meetings closed to the public or executive 

sessions are normally not appropriate for boards, commissions and committees and will 

not be conducted without the advice and consent of the city attorney. All boards, 

commissions and committees must keep at least summary records of their proceedings 

and these records will be accessible to the public. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

65



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 28 

 

Decision-making Boards, Commissions and Committees Defined. 

These are legislative and/or ‘quasi-judicial’ bodies which are empowered by State Law to 

make decisions affecting City policy relating to the public health, safety or welfare. These 

boards, commissions or committees are “governing bodies” under the Texas Open Meetings 

Act and are thus required to comply in all respects with the Act.  Current decision-making 

boards, commissions and committees found within the City of Wimberley’s Code of 

Ordinances are as follows: 

Board of Adjustment 

Planning and Zoning Commission 

  

66



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 29 

 

Board of Adjustment 

Creation: The Board of Adjustment (hereafter, the “board”), was created for the purpose, 

in appropriate cases and subject to appropriate conditions and safeguards, to grant 

variances from certain specific and literal terms of this article that are consistent with the 

general purpose and intent of this article. The board shall be composed of members who 

are resident citizens and qualified voters of the city. 

Members; terms of office: 

(1)   The board of adjustment shall consist of the city council or seven (7) permanent 

 members, five (5) regular and two (2) alternate members, who are resident citizens 

 and qualified voters of the city. One (1) member shall be nominated by the city 

 council as a group. One (1) member shall be nominated for appointment by the 

 mayor. Each city council member shall nominate a board member. Board members 

 who shall be appointed by a simple majority vote of the city council, in accordance 

 with Texas Local Gov't Code, Sections 211.008–211.011, as amended. Of the seven 

 (7) appointees, the board bylaws shall determine who are the five (5) regular 

 members and the two (2) alternates for each case heard by the board. 

(2)    Regular board members and alternate members shall serve for a term of two (2) 

 years, and expiration of terms shall be staggered so that an overlapping of terms 

 occurs, such as in any two-year period, the terms of three (3) members shall expire 

 during one of those years, and the terms of four (4) members shall expire during the 

 second year. Terms of office shall expire on the first day of November of any given 

 year. 

(3)     If a vacancy occurs on the commission, the city council, mayor or individual city 

 council member who originally appointed that member or his or her successor shall 

 appoint a person, with approval of the city council, to fill the unexpired term at the 

 first regular meeting of the city council following notification of the vacancy. 

(4)     Removal of board members. The city council may by majority vote remove  

 a board member for lack of confidence, incompetence, corruption, misconduct, or 

 malfeasance. In addition, upon recommendation of the board of adjustment, the city 

 council by super-majority vote may remove any board member who misses three (3) 

67



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 30 

 

 consecutive meetings within a twelve (12) month period of time or four (4) meetings 

 within a twelve (12) month time period. For the purpose of this meeting attendance 

 requirement, it shall be considered a missed meeting for any board member who 

 leaves a meeting prior to the completion of all action items on the posted agenda for 

 a meeting, for any other reason than to avoid a potential conflict of interest. 

 Any board member who is removed shall not be considered for appointment to 

 a board by the city council for a period of six (6) months from the date of their 

 removal. 

(5)   The members of the board shall regularly attend meetings and public hearings of 

 the board and shall serve without compensation. 

(6)   The board shall elect a chairperson and a vice-chairperson from among its 

 membership, and each officer shall hold office for one year or until replaced by a 

 simple majority vote of the full board. The director or his or her designee shall keep 

 minutes of all meetings held by the board as well as the full record of all 

 recommendations made by the planning and zoning commission to the city council. 

Meetings: Meetings of the board of adjustment shall be held at the call of the chairperson 

and at other times as the board may determine. All meetings of the board shall be open to 

the public. Closed meetings (such as executive session) shall be permitted as authorized by 

law. Four (4) members of the board shall constitute a quorum for the conduct of business. 

All cases to be heard by the board will always be heard by at least seventy-five percent 

(75%) of the members, which constitutes four (4) members. 

Authority of board: The board of adjustment shall have the authority, subject to the 

standards established in Texas Local Gov't Code, Sections 211.008–211.011, and those 

established herein, to exercise powers and to perform duties including the following: 

(1)     Hear and decide an appeal that alleges error in an order, requirement, decision, or 

 determination made by an administrative official in the enforcement of this article 

 and other city ordinances granting appellate jurisdiction to the board; 

(2)     Authorize in specific cases a variance from the terms of this article if the variance is 

 not contrary to the public interest and, due to special conditions, a literal 

68



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 31 

 

 enforcement of this article would result in unnecessary hardship, and so that the 

 spirit of this article is observed and substantial justice is done; 

(3)     In exercising its authority, the board may reverse or affirm, in whole or in part, or 

 modify the administrative official's order, requirement, decision, or determination 

 from which an appeal is taken and make the correct order, requirement, decision, or 

 determination, and for that purpose the board has the same authority as the 

 administrative official; and 

(4)     The concurring vote of a majority plus one (super-majority) of the board is necessary 

 to: 

 (A)     Reverse an order, requirement, decision, or determination of an administrative 

  official; 

 (B)     Decide in favor of an applicant on a matter on which the board is required to  

  review by ordinance; or 

 (C)     Authorize a variance from the strict and literal terms of this article. 

Limitations on authority of board: 

(1)     The board may not grant a variance authorizing a use other than those permitted in 

 the district for which the variance is sought, except as provided  below. Generally, 

 the board is not authorized to grant use variances. 

(2)     The board shall have no power to grant or modify conditional use permits authorized 

 under these regulations. 

(3)     The board shall have no power to grant a zoning amendment. In the event that a 

 request for a zoning amendment is pending before the planning and zoning 

 commission or the city council, the board shall neither hear nor grant any variances 

 with respect to the subject property until final disposition of the zoning amendment. 

(4)     The board shall not grant a variance for any parcel of property or portion thereof 

 upon which a site plan, preliminary plat, or final plat, where required, is pending on 

 the agenda of the planning and zoning commission and, where applicable, by the city 

69



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 32 

 

 council. All administrative remedies available to the applicant shall have been 

 exhausted prior to hearing by the board of adjustment. 

Variances: 

(1)     A variance is the relief from strict application of any term or provision of this article 

 when such strict application would cause an undue hardship. The hardship must be 

 due to the nature of the land or tract of land and cannot be solely economic in 

 nature. Under no circumstances can a variance be issued to allow any use other than 

 those set forth in the zoning district in question. 

(2)     The board of adjustment may authorize a variance from these regulations when, in 

 its opinion, undue hardship will result from requiring strict compliance. In granting a 

 variance, the board shall prescribe only conditions that it deems necessary for or 

 desirable to the public interest. In making the findings hereinbelow required, 

 the board shall take into account the following: 

 (A)     The nature of the proposed use of the land involved; 

 (B)     Any existing uses of land in the vicinity; and 

 (C)     The probable effect such variance will have upon traffic conditions and upon  

  the public health, safety, convenience and welfare of the community. 

(3)     No variance shall be granted without first having given public notice and having held 

 a public hearing on the variance request in accordance herewith and unless 

 the board of adjustment makes specific, written findings as follows: 

 (A)     That there are special circumstances or conditions affecting the property  

  involved such that the strict application of the provisions of this article would  

  (i) deprive the applicant of the reasonable use of the property; and (ii) create 

  an unnecessary hardship in the development of the property; 

 (B)     That such circumstances or conditions are (i) not self-imposed; (ii) not based 

  solely on economic gain or loss; and (iii) do not generally affect most properties 

  in the vicinity of the property; 

70



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 33 

 

 (C)     The variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of a substantial 

  property right of the applicant; 

 (D)     The variance if granted will not: 

  (i)     Adversely affect the public health, safety or welfare; 

  (ii)    Be contrary to the public interest; and 

  (iii)    Be injurious to or adversely affect the orderly use of other property  

   within the area. 

 (E)     The property involved is otherwise in compliance with all other applicable city 

  ordinances, rules, and regulations; and 

 (F)     The granting of the variance will be in harmony with the spirit and purpose of 

  this article. 

(4)     In making the finding required in subsection (3)(E) above, the board may rely solely 

 on a representation by the city administrator. If the city administrator's 

 representation is that the property is not in compliance with any city ordinance, it 

 shall specify such noncompliance (the “noncompliance”). In the event that 

 the board can make the findings required to grant a variance but for the 

 noncompliance, it may grant a variance to the applicant conditioned upon the 

 property coming into compliance within ninety (90) days of such conditional grant, 

 or within such longer period as may be specified by the board of adjustment. The 

 applicant shall take no action based upon such variance until the expiration of such 

 period. If the city administrator does not determine that the noncompliance has been 

 cured within such period, the variance shall expire automatically. 

(5)     The applicant bears the burden of proof in establishing the facts justifying a variance. 

(6)     A building permit shall be applied for (if required) and construction initiated within 

 one year of the issuance of a variance. If this condition is not met, the variance shall 

 expire automatically unless extended by the board. No development right (if any) 

 shall vest in an expired variance. 

71



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 34 

 

Appeals to the board of adjustment: 

(1)     Authority. In addition to the authorization of variances from the terms of this article, 

 the board shall have the authority to hear and decide an appeal that alleges error in 

 an order, requirement, decision, or determination made by an administrative official 

 in the enforcement of this article. The board may reverse or affirm, in whole or in 

 part, or may modify the administrative official's order, requirement, decision, or 

 determination from which an appeal is taken and make the correct order, 

 requirement, decision, or determination, and for that purpose, the BA has the same 

 authority as the administrative official. The board may also hear and decide other 

 matters authorized by Article 9.02 of the City’s Code of Ordinances and other 

 ordinances regarding land use regulations. 

(2)     Who may appeal. Any of the following persons may appeal to the board a decision 

 made  by an administrative official: 

 (A)     A person directly aggrieved by the decision; or 

 (B)     Any officer, department, board, or office of the municipality affected by the  

  decision. 

(3)     Procedure for appeal. The appellant must file with the board and the administrative 

 official from whom the appeal is taken a written notice of appeal specifying the 

 grounds for the appeal. The appeal must be filed within sixty (60) days after the 

 decision has been rendered. Upon receiving the notice, the official from whom the 

 appeal is taken shall immediately transmit to the board all papers constituting the 

 record of action that is appealed. An appeal stays all proceedings in 

 furtherance of the action that is appealed unless the official from whom the appeal is 

 taken certifies in writing to the board facts supporting the official's opinion that a stay 

 would cause imminent peril to life or property. In that case, the proceedings may be 

 stayed only by a restraining order granted by the board or a court of record on 

 application, after notice to the official, if due cause is shown. The appealing party 

 may appear at the appeal hearing in person or by agent or attorney. The board shall 

 decide the appeal within four (4) weeks after a public hearing is concluded, after 

 which time the request shall be deemed automatically approved if no formal action 

72

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/DocViewer.jsp?doccode=z20000039&z2collection=wimberley#JD_9.02


Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 35 

 

 is taken. The board may reverse or affirm, in whole or in part, or modify the 

 administrative official's order, requirement, decision, or determination from which an 

 appeal is taken, and make the correct order, requirement, decision, or determination. 

Procedures: 

(1)    Application and fee. An application for a variance by the board of adjustment shall 

 be made in writing using forms prescribed by the board, and shall be accompanied 

 by an application fee (as adopted by the city from time to time and maintained on 

 file),  a site plan, and additional information as may be requested in order to properly 

 review the application. This information may include, but is not limited to, plat plans, 

 site building plans, photographs, topographic contour maps, and other similar 

 documents. 

(2)     Review and report by the city. The mayor or the mayor's designee shall visit the site 

 where the proposed variance will apply and the surrounding area and shall report his 

 or her findings to the board. 

(3)  Notice and public hearing. The board shall hold a public hearing for 

 consideration of the variance request no later than forty-five (45) days after the date 

 the application for action, or an appeal, is filed. Notice of the public hearing shall be 

 provided to all property owners within two hundred (200) feet of the affected 

 property at least ten (10) days prior to the public hearing, and also published in the 

 official local newspaper at least ten (10) days prior to the public hearing. 

(4)     Action by the board. The board shall not grant a variance unless it finds, based upon 

 compelling evidence, that each of the conditions above has been established. The 

 board may impose conditions, limitations, and safeguards as it deems appropriate 

 upon the granting of any variance. Violation of any such condition, limitation, or 

 safeguard shall constitute a violation of this article. 

Finality of decisions; judicial review: All decisions of the board are final and binding. 

However, any person aggrieved by a decision of the board may present a verified petition 

to a court of record which states that the decision of the board is illegal, in whole or in part, 

and specifying the grounds of the illegality. This petition must be presented within ten (10) 

days after the date the decision is filed in the director's office. Subject to the 

73



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 36 

 

provisions of Texas Local Gov't Code, Section 211.011, only a court of record may reverse, 

affirm, or modify a decision of the board. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

74



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 37 

 

Planning and Zoning Commission 

Generally: The Planning and Zoning Commission (hereafter, the “commission”) shall 

function according to the following criteria which establish membership and operating 

procedures. 

Creation; membership; officers; rules and bylaws: 

(1)     There is created, in accordance with Texas Local Gov't Code, Chapter 211, the 

 commission, which shall consist of seven (7) members who are either resident 

 citizens of the city or are residents of the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the city, 

 provided no more than two (2) members shall reside in the extraterritorial jurisdiction 

 of the city. In the event that a vacancy occurs on the commission that results in the 

 majority of the commission members being residents that reside outside the city 

 limits, then the commission will not meet or conduct business until such time as the 

 vacancy can be filled by appointment of the city council so that a majority of 

 the commission members are residents living within the city limits. For purposes of 

 this section, the member that moved outside the city limits which caused 

 the commission to lose its majority of members who reside within the city limits shall 

 be deemed to have automatically resigned from membership of the commission. If 

 the member's move outside the city limits does not result in a majority of members 

 residing outside the city limits, then the member will continue to serve on 

 the commission. 

(2)     Any member of the city council may nominate an eligible person to fill a vacant 

 position on the commission. Each person so nominated must be approved by a simple 

 majority vote of the council before becoming a member of the commission. 

(3)     Commissioners shall be appointed to a particular place on the commission (such as 

 Planning and Zoning Commissioner, Place 1) that correlates with the place on the 

 city council responsible for their nomination (such as City Council Place 1). The mayor 

 shall be responsible for nominating the mayor and consensus places on 

 the commission. Commissioners shall serve three (3) year staggered terms, or, in 

 the event that a commissioner is appointed to fill a vacancy, the remainder of the 

 term for which the commissioner is appointed, unless the commissioner resigns or is 

75



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 38 

 

 removed prior to the expiration of the term. The members of the commission shall 

 serve until their successors are appointed. Each commissioner shall be eligible for 

 reappointment. 

 (4)     If a vacancy occurs on the commission, the city council may fill the unexpired 

  term at the first regular meeting of city council following notification of  

  vacancy. 

(5)     Removal of commission members. The city council may, by majority vote, remove 

 a commission member for lack of confidence, incompetence, corruption, misconduct 

 or malfeasance. The commission shall hold one (1) regular meeting per month on the 

 second Thursday of the month. The commission may hold special called meetings at 

 any other time, when deemed necessary. Any commission member who misses three 

 (3) regular meetings or special called meetings, under the circumstances set forth in 

 this article, within a twelve (12) month time period shall be deemed to have 

 automatically vacated his or her position on the commission. When 

 any commission member has missed two (2) regular meetings or special called 

 meetings, under the circumstances set forth in this article, in a twelve (12) month 

 time period, the city administrator shall notify the subject commission member and 

 city council, in writing, about the subject commission member's absences. For the 

 purpose of this meeting attendance requirement, it shall be considered a missed 

 meeting for any member who misses a special called meeting that was cancelled due 

 to a lack of quorum because of the subject commission member's absence. In 

 addition, it shall be considered a missed meeting for any commission member who 

 leaves a meeting prior to the completion of all action items on the posted agenda for 

 a meeting for any other reason other than to avoid a potential conflict of interest. For 

 the purpose of this policy, any commission member who automatically vacates his or 

 her position on the commission may be considered for reappointment to 

 the commission or appointment to another city board in the future by the city council. 

(6)     Members of the commission shall regularly attend meetings and public hearings of 

 the commission and shall serve without compensation. Voluntary absences from 

 three (3) meetings of the commission in a calendar year will result in the automatic 

 resignation of the commissioner. The chairperson may excuse an absence if the 

76



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 39 

 

 commissioner concerned seeks an excused absence. Once three (3) unexcused 

 absences are recorded, the chairperson will refer the commissioner in question to the 

 city council to schedule the appointment of a replacement. 

(7)     From among its members the commission shall elect its officers, those being the 

 chairperson, vice-chairperson, and parliamentarian. Officers shall be elected for 

 terms of one (1) year. The chairperson shall not hold the position for two (2) 

 consecutive terms. The commission, at its second meeting each June, shall select all 

 the positions. New officers shall begin serving during the meeting following their 

 selection and they shall serve until the next election of officers. 

(8)     The chairperson shall preside over all meetings of the commission and may vote. The 

 vice-chairperson shall preside in the absence of the chairperson, and the 

 parliamentarian shall preside in the absence of both the chairperson and vice-

 chairperson. In the absence of the parliamentarian, a parliamentarian pro tem shall 

 be appointed by the chairperson or vice-chairperson as appropriate. 

(9)     The commission may appoint consultants, citizen committees, and council [counsel] 

 to assist in the work of the commission on the approval of the person(s) and a duly 

 passed motion of the commission. These groups have standing without vote as 

 advisors in commission meetings. The entire work product of a consultant, 

 committee, or council relating to an agenda item may become part of the records of 

 the commission, at the discretion of the chairperson. 

(10)   The commission shall take no final action on any matter before it without first 

 obtaining reports from the city departments concerned. 

(11)   Releases and statements to the public and press in the name of the commission shall 

 be made only by the chairperson or the chairperson's designated representative. The 

 chairperson shall sign all written recommendations of the commission. 

Parliamentary procedure; quorum; voting: The commission will follow the 

parliamentary procedure adopted by the city council for all boards and commissions, and 

procedures shall not be in conflict with the laws applicable to the commission on [or] the 

following: 

77



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 40 

 

(1)     Quorum. A quorum shall consist of five (5) members of the commission. Motions shall 

 carry  with a simple majority vote; however, in no case shall less than four (4) votes 

 in favor of a  motion constitute a majority; 

(2)     Voting on motions. Voting on zoning applications shall be by rotating roll-call vote 

 with the chairperson always voting last. Voting on all other questions may be by 

 voice, provided that a roll-call vote shall be taken upon demand of the public or any 

 commissioner; 

(3)     Reconsideration of decisions. Reconsideration of a finding of the commission shall be 

 granted by the chairperson when any interested party for the reconsideration 

 demonstrates to the chairperson that essential facts were not brought to the attention 

 of the commission; 

(4)    Conflict of interest. A member shall not vote or participate in any deliberations 

 regarding a matter before the commission if the member has any personal interest 

 in or any property within two hundred (200) feet of the property in question, whether 

 that interest is direct, indirect, financial, or otherwise. In any case, where the 

 question of a member's interest is raised, the chairperson shall rule on whether the 

 member should be disqualified; and 

(5)     Use of Robert's Rules. Any question of order of procedure not covered herein shall be 

 decided according to the latest edition of Robert's Rules of Order, insofar as that may 

 be applicable. 

Meetings; public record: 

(1)    Time and place; notice. Regular meetings shall be held in the city hall, except as 

 otherwise provided herein, when called by the chairperson. There shall, however, be 

 at least one (1) meeting each quarter. The chairperson may call special meeting times 

 and locations, provided that written notice thereof is sent to each member seventy-

 two (72) hours prior to the time of the meeting. All meetings shall be posted for 

 public review at least seventy-two (72) hours prior to the meeting date. No approval, 

 disposal, or final action shall be taken on any zoning application unless all notice 

78



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 41 

 

 requirements mandated by state statute, these rules and procedures, or any other 

 ordinance pertaining to the application or notice requirements have been met. 

(2)     Open and closed meeting; minutes. Meetings shall be open to the public, and minutes 

 shall be kept and shall be treated as public record. Closed meetings (such as 

 executive sessions) shall be permitted as authorized by law. The city secretary or his 

 or her designee shall keep minutes and records of all proceedings of the commission. 

 These records shall be secured at the city hall as a matter of public record. 

(3)     Public comment. A public forum will be a regular part of each meeting agenda for 

 remarks unrelated to other agenda items. Public comment will be heard on each 

 agenda item. Each comment shall be limited to three (3) minutes unless questions 

 by the commission are in order. Public comment requiring more than three (3) 

 minutes must be placed on the agenda in a timely manner at the request of a 

 commissioner or city council member. This provision may be waived in regard to work 

 sessions at the discretion of the commission. 

Establishing extraterritorial jurisdiction: 

(1)     Statutes of the state authorizing and empowering cities to regulate the platting and 

 recording of subdivisions or additions within the corporate limits and establishing 

 extraterritorial jurisdiction are hereby adopted, and the commission, acting through 

 its duly authorized officials, shall have all the rights, powers, privileges, and authority 

 authorized and granted by and through the statutes pertaining to regulation of 

 subdivisions and extraterritorial powers. 

(2)     Subject to restrictions imposed by the city council, the commission shall have all the 

 rights, powers, privileges, and authority authorized and granted by and through the 

 statutes of the state authorizing and granting cities the power of zoning as found in 

 Texas Local Gov't Code, Chapter 211, as amended. 

 

 

 

79



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 42 

 

Powers and duties: 

(1)     In general, the commission shall be an advisory body and adjunct to the city council, 

 and shall make recommendations regarding amendments to the comprehensive plan, 

 changes of zoning, and zoning to be given to newly annexed areas, and shall make 

 recommendations regarding the approval of plats of subdivisions as may be 

 submitted to it for review and other planning related matters. The commission shall 

 conduct an annual review of the city's comprehensive plan and shall be prepared to 

 make recommendations to the city council as deemed necessary to keep the city's 

 comprehensive plan current with changing conditions and trends and with the 

 planning needs of the city. The commission shall serve in an advisory capacity on any 

 planning related item(s) in the city, including the city's capital improvements 

 program, annexation plan, and the expansion or extension of city infrastructure such 

 as roadways, utility services, and public facilities. The commission shall also make 

 recommendations to the city council regarding historical and architectural standards. 

(2)     The commission shall perform those other duties as may be assigned by the city 

 council by ordinance or resolution. 

Procedure on zoning hearings: The procedure and process for zoning changes and 

amendments shall be in accordance with Section 9.03.255 of the City’s Code of Ordinances. 

 

 

 

 

 

  

80



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 43 

 

Chapter II: Boards, Commissions and Committees 
Appointment Process 

Application Process  

Citizens interested in serving on a board, commission or committee can obtain an 

application from the City Secretary's Office at City Hall or from the City’s website, 

https://www.cityofwimberley.com/ .  The completed application can be submitted directly 

to the City Secretary or to the Mayor or Council member who nominated the applicant.  

Applications are valid for one (1) year, after which a new application must be submitted.  

Appointment Process 

The Wimberley City Council makes appointments to City of Wimberley boards, commissions 

or committees.  The City Council considers applications to these entities during regular City 

Council meetings.  

Notice of Appointment 

After the City Council appoints a person to serve as a member of a board, commission or 

committee, the City Administrator and/or City Secretary will notify the appointee in writing 

of the appointment.   

Eligibility and Qualifications 

The Wimberley City Council seeks qualified persons to serve on boards, commissions and 

committees.  The qualifications required to serve on a particular board, commission or 

committee are determined by City of Wimberley’s Code of Ordinances, Policy or by the State 

Law, which established the board, commission or committee.  

Appointments to boards, commissions or committees that do have eligibility requirements 

must be made in accordance with the governing City ordinance or State statute/s. Board, 

commission or committee members must continue to meet the eligibility requirements 

during the entire time they serve.  If a member cannot continue to maintain the necessary 

requirements, he/she shall resign his/her position.  

81

https://www.cityofwimberley.com/


Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 44 

 

Nepotism 

Section 2.07.004 of the City of Wimberley’s Code of Ordinances (“Code”) provides that: 

(1)  A city official may not appoint, confirm the appointment of, or vote for the 

 appointment or confirmation of the appointment of an individual to a position that is 

 to be directly or indirectly compensated from city funds or fees of office if: 

 (A)     The individual is related to the city official within the third degree by   

  consanguinity (blood or adoption) or the second degree by affinity (marriage), 

  as illustrated by the chart in Section 2.07.002(c)(4) of the Code; or 

 (B)     The city official holds the appointment or confirmation authority as a member 

  of a state or local board, the legislature, or a court and the individual is related 

  to another member of that board, legislature, or court within the third degree 

  by consanguinity (blood or adoption) or the second degree by affinity   

  (marriage), as illustrated by the chart in Section 2.07.002(c)(4) of the Code. 

(2)   A city official may not appoint, confirm the appointment of, or vote for the 

 appointment or confirmation of the appointment of an individual to a position in which 

 the individual's services are under the public official's direction or control and that is 

 to be compensated directly or indirectly from city funds or fees of office if: 

 (A)     The individual is related to another public official within the third degree by  

  consanguinity (blood or adoption) or the second degree by affinity (marriage), 

  as illustrated by the chart in Section 2.07.002(c)(4) of the Code; and 

 (B)     The appointment, confirmation of the appointment, or vote for appointment or 

  confirmation of the appointment would be carried out in whole or partial  

  consideration for the other public official appointing, confirming the   

  appointment, or voting for the appointment or confirmation of the appointment 

  of an individual who is related to the first public official within the third degree 

  by consanguinity (blood or adoption) or the second degree by affinity   

  (marriage), as illustrated by the chart in Section 2.07.002(c)(4) of the Code. 

 

82

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/DocViewer.jsp?doccode=z20000008&z2collection=wimberley#JD_2.07.002
https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/DocViewer.jsp?doccode=z20000008&z2collection=wimberley#JD_2.07.002
https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/DocViewer.jsp?doccode=z20000008&z2collection=wimberley#JD_2.07.002
https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/DocViewer.jsp?doccode=z20000008&z2collection=wimberley#JD_2.07.002


Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 45 

 

Oath of Office 

Upon appointment, an oath of office is administered to all members of boards, commissions 

and committees.  The oath of office can be administered by the City Secretary or designee 

or a City-employed Notary Public for the State of Texas.  

Open Meetings Act Training 

Upon appointment, each new board, commission or committee member is required to 

complete the Open Meetings Act Training as required by the State of Texas Attorney General 

within ninety (90) days of his/her appointment and provide a certificate of completion to 

the City Secretary for the City’s records.   

83



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 46 

 

Chapter III: Meetings 

Role of the Chairperson 

The function of the chairperson is to provide leadership for the group by presiding over the 

group’s meetings.  The chairperson is selected by other board, commission or committee 

members in a method agreeable to all members.  There areThe chairperson has additional 

certain duties and responsibilities, which must be performed.  

The chairperson should ensures the smooth operation of the board, commission or 

committee, and must be strong enough to make certain that the meeting is run by the rules, 

but democratic enough to use the power and authority of the position wisely.  The 

chairperson’s ability to handle effectively manage meetings will have a significant impact 

on operation and effectivenessthe group’s success.  

The An effective chairperson must make certain that discussions remain focused and do not 

get sidetracked on minor irrelevant issues. and must have the ability to remain focused on 

the agenda.  

The Role of Other Offices 

If the chairperson fails or refuses to act, the vice-chairperson shall perform the duties of 

the chairperson. Other officers and duties shall be determined by the respective board, 

commission or committee.  

The Agenda 

The agenda should always be prepared by City staff prior to the meeting and copies 

distributed to all board, commission or committee members, either digitally or in hard copy 

format.  Extra copies of the agenda should be available for the public at the meeting.  

The agenda is prepared by the department head or staff person assigned to the board, 

commission or committee.  Certain Most boards, commissions and committees are required 

by the Texas Open Meetings Act (TOMA), to post the agenda publicly, at least seventy-two 

(72) hours prior to the meeting.  It is a City of Wimberley practice that all boards, 

commissions and committees follow the TOMA.  

84



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 47 

 

Parliamentary Procedures 

Meetings of boards, commissions and committees are generally conducted under standard 

parliamentary rules adopted by that body.  

Meeting Attendance 

All board, commission or committee members are expected to attend meetings to ensure 

the community is well represented. Every board, commission or committee member is 

expected to maintain a suitable attendance record.  It is important to keep in mind that 

attendance Attendance is very important to the board, commission or committee.   

The term "meetings" includes all meetings of the board, commission or committee and all 

meetings of the organization’s subcommittees on which the member serves.  The secretary 

of the board, commission or committee is responsible for keeping track of the members' 

attendance.  If a member does not follow the attendance policy set for the board, 

commission or committee, the member can be removed. from service by a recommendation 

of the entity to the City Council.  

Working with City Staff  

Each board, commission, or committee member is encouraged to works with City staff and 

with the appropriate designated department staff assigned to that board, commission or 

committee. City staff is assigned to provides general assistance, such as preparation of 

agenda materials and general review of department programs and activities, and to perform 

limited studies and other services. 

Reporting to the City Council 

The City Council relies on The role of each board, commission or committee is to make 

recommendations to City projectsCouncil.  It is through the boards, commissions and 

committees that the City Council can receive citizenry input.  All boards, commissions and 

committees are encouraged required to communicate the position of the body to the City 

Council and shall provide regular updates to City Council during Council meetings.  

85



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 48 

 

There will be occasions when City staff will be required to prepare an agenda item for City 

Council review. In preparation of such a report, the staff member should present both the 

staff position and the board, commission or committee’s position.   

It is the desire of the City Council to have an opportunity to hear and consider all sides of 

an issue and alternative all recommendations to assist in their its decision-making process.  

  

86



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 49 

 

Chapter IV: Responsibilities of Board, Commission 
and Committee Members 

General 

It is an honor to be selected as a City board, committee or committee member and it 

provides an unusual a special opportunity for genuine public service.  Although specific 

duties of each body vary widely, there are certain responsibilities that are common to all 

members.  The following is a summary of those responsibilities: 

a) Members should understand the role and scope of their responsibilities and should 

be informed of the individual board, commission or committee's purpose and of its 

operating procedures.  

b) Members should be careful to represent the majority views of their individual board, 

commission or committee.  Individual "opinions" to the public and press should be 

identified as such.  

c) Members should represent the public interest and not special-interest groups.  

d) Good communication is essential – members are in a position to serve as liaison 

between the City and its citizens and can help to reconcile opposing viewpoints and 

to build a consensus around common goals and objectives.  Members serve as a 

communication link between the community, staff, and City, presenting 

recommendations and providing a channel for citizen expression.  

e) Members are encouragedrequired to review their agenda packets prior to meetings, 

and contact City staff .with questions and be thorough in their recommendations; if 

Where possible, members should personally view situations (i.e. visit sites or view 

geographical issues) under consideration prior to the meeting in order to be fully 

prepared to discuss, evaluate, and act on all matters scheduled for consideration.  

Conclusions based on preparedness a thorough review of the agenda item will 

strengthen the value of the group's recommendations.  

f) Members are encouraged to establish Establishing a good working relationship within 

the group is important for the group’s effectiveness.; These relationship aspects 

87



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 50 

 

include respecting individual viewpoints; allowing other members time to present 

their views fully before making comments; being open and honest; welcome and 

welcoming new members.  

g) City Council is a non-partisan body.  Therefore, its appointments to boards, 

commissions or committees are made without regard to political party affiliation.  

Members are not restricted from participating in political activities; however, 

members should not attempt to use or involve their board, committee or commission 

membership in the conduct of outside political activities.  

Texas Open Meetings Act (TOMA) 

The Texas Open Meetings Act (TOMA) requires that every meeting of the City Council be 

open to the public. The Act also requires all boards and commissions, other than advisory 

boards, commissions and committees, to follow this requirement as well.  In Wimberley, all 

boards, commissions and committees follow the procedures for open meetings. These 

requirements include: 

a) A Posted Notice is required of a meeting.  Written notice of the date, hour, place and 

subject of each meeting must be posted on a public bulletin board, located at a place 

convenient to the public for at least seventy-two (72) hours preceding the scheduled 

time of the meeting. Only those matters posted can be discussed and acted on by 

the governmental body.  

b) Minutes are required to be prepared and a voice or video recording made of each 

open meeting. Minutes must state the subject of each deliberation and indicate each 

vote, order, decision or other action taken.  

c) Closed Meetings – The Texas Open Meetings Act (TOMA), does allow for closed or 

executive meetings on a few limited subjects.  Generally, boards, commissions or 

committees will not have occasion or legal basis to meet in closed or executive 

session.  Closed meetings are allowed to discuss pending litigation, certain personnel 

matters, and the lease or acquisition of land.  However, before Before a closed 

meeting can be held, a quorum of the governmental body must convene in an open 

meeting and the presiding officer publicly announce that a closed meeting will be held 

and identify the sections of the Act authorizing the closed meeting.  No final action, 

88



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 51 

 

decision, or vote can be made in a closed meeting.  All final actions, decisions, and 

votes must be made in open meetings. Further, the The governmental body is also 

required to keep a Certified Agenda of the matters discussed in the closed meeting 

and a record of any further action taken.  The presiding officer must include an 

announcement at the beginning and end of the closed meeting indicating the time 

and place and must certify that the agenda is a true and correct record of the 

proceedings. Blank Certified Agenda forms for use by presiding officers are available 

in the City Secretary’s Office.   In lieu of maintaining a Certified Agenda, a tape 

recording of the closed meeting may be made.  

d) Penalties – A fine of not less than $100 nor more than $500 or imprisonment in the 

county jail for not less than one (1) month nor more than six (6) months, or both 

fine and imprisonment, can be imposed for violating the provisions of the Open 

Meetings Act or conspiring to circumvent the provisions of the Open Meetings Act by 

meeting in numbers less than a quorum for the purposes of secret deliberations.  

Public Information Act (PIA) 

The Public Information Act (PIA) also requires that virtually all information held by a 

governmental body must fall under the rules of the Act.  If a request for information is 

received by a board, commission or committee, the City Secretary should be notified 

promptly for the proper procedure in complying with the request.   

89



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 52 

 

Chapter V: Legal Liability 

Personal Liability 

Board, commission or committee members cannot be held personally liable for erroneous 

acts while honestly exercising the functions of their offices in good faith.  The only time a 

member can be held personally liable is when they act outside the scope of their office and 

in bad faith. When members of City boards, commissions or committees are acting in good 

faith and within the bounds allowed by the City, state and federal law, the City will generally 

provide a defense for such members to the greatest extent permissible.  However, if a 

board, commission or committee member acts fraudulently, maliciously, or in violation of a 

criminal law while serving in his/her official capacity, the City generally will not provide that 

member a defense.  

Board, Commission or Committee Liability 

A city, its officers, and members of boards, commissions or committees as a governmental 

entity, must treat all individuals or groups in the same manner unless there is a compelling 

governmental interest to treat someone or some group differently.  Therefore, the City 

Attorney should be consulted concerning whether or not an individual or group can be 

treated differently.  If an officer or board, commission or committee member illegally 

discriminates against an individual or group, that individual or group can seek damages 

from the City and from the individual officer for a violation of rights under the state and 

federal civil rights statutes.  

The above discussion is by no means intended to be a comprehensive and complete 

discussion of legal liabilities to which the City or board, commission or committee member 

may be subjected.  

Board, commission or committee members are strongly encouragedrequired to consult with 

City staff, who may seek legal advice from the City Attorney, anytime they feel their actions 

while serving on such board, commission or committee may have some legal consequences. 

The law in this area is quite complex and requires a thorough analysis of the law and facts 

pertaining to each particular situation.   

90



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 53 

 

Appendixes 

Appendix A – Definitions 

“Affinity”  means a relation by marriage.  

“Business entity”  means a sole proprietorship, partnership, firm, corporation, 

holding company, joint stock company, receivership, trust or any 

other entity recognized by law.  

“Board” or “Body”  means any board, commission, agency or committee of the City 

created by the passage of a City Ordinance or Resolution with 

decision or advisory making authority designated as a board, 

commission, agency or committee by the City Council.  

“City”  means the City of Wimberley.  

“City Council”  means the City Council of the City of Wimberley.  

“Closed meeting”  means a meeting closed to the public which complies with specific 

state statutes.  

“Consanguinity”  means a relation or connection by blood.  

“Degree”  relating to consanguinity and affinity.  

 first degree of consanguinity means parents, children and siblings  

 first degree of affinity means spouse, in laws/parents, children 

and siblings  

 second degree means grandparents, grandchildren, aunts, 

uncles, nephews, nieces and first cousins  

“Deliberation”  means a verbal exchange during a meeting between a quorum of 

a governmental body, or between a quorum of a jurisdiction of 

91



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 54 

 

governmental body and another person, concerning an issue 

within the governmental body or any public business.  

“Employee”  means a person who is employed by the City of Wimberley.  

“Ex officio”  means by virtue or because of an office.  

“Governmental”  means a board or commission that has rulemaking, quasi-

judicial, or advisory power and that is classified as a department, 

agency or political subdivision of a county or municipality.  

“Governing body”  means the Wimberley City Council and every board, commission, 

or committee that exercises decision-making authority on behalf 

of the City.  

“Incidental Interest”  means an interest in a person, entity or property which is not a 

substantial interest, and which has insignificant value, or which 

would be affected only in a de minimis fashion by a decision.  

“Judicial”  the power to judge, to administer justice and interpret laws and 

ordinances.  

“Meeting”  means a deliberation between a quorum of a governmental body, 

or between a quorum of a governmental body and another 

person, during which public business or public policy over which 

the governmental body has supervision or control is discussed or 

considered or during which the governmental body takes formal 

action.  The term does not include the gathering of a quorum of 

a governmental body at a social function unrelated to the public 

business.  

“Member”  means a member of a board.  

“Person”  means any individual, firm, trust, corporation, partnership or any 

other legal entity.  

92



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 55 

 

“Quorum”  means the prescribed number of members of any body that must 

be present to legally transact business.  

“Remote Interest”  means an interest of a person or entity, including an officer or 

member who would be affected in the same way as the general 

public.  The interest of a council member in the property tax rate, 

general city fees, city utility charges or a comprehensive zoning 

ordinance or similar decisions is incidental to the extent that the 

council member would be affected in common with the general 

public. 

“Substantial Interest 

in a business entity or 

real property” 

means an individual, firm, trust, corporation, partnership or any 

other legal entity: 

 1) with respect to a business entity, the interest is ownership of 

ten percent (10%) or more of the voting stock or shares of the 

business entity or ownership of either ten percent (10%) or more 

or Fifteen Thousand Dollars ($15,000) or more of the fair market 

value of the business entity.  

 2) with respect to a business entity, funds received by the person 

from the business entity exceed ten percent (10%) of the officer 

or member's gross income for the previous year.  

 3) with respect to real property, equitable or legal ownership with 

a fair market value of Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars 

($2,500) or more. or as established from time to time in Section 

171.002, Texas Local Government Code. 

 

  

93



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 56 

 

Appendix B – Chart of Kinship 

 

The chart to the left shows an Affinity 

Kinship (relationship by marriage) 

The chart to the right shows a 

Consanguinity Kinship (relationship by 

blood) 

 

These charts are used for the purposes of interpreting nepotism as defined in VTCA Government 

Code, Chapter 573, §§573.021-.025 

94



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 57 

 

Appendix C – Robert’s Rules of Order Relating to Motions 

MOTION 

D
EB

A
TA

B
LE

 

D
EB

A
TE

 C
O

N
FI

N
ED

 T
O

 P
EN

D
IN

G
 

Q
U

ES
TI

O
N

 

C
A

N
 B

E 
A

M
EN

D
ED

 

C
A

N
 R

EC
O

N
SI

D
ER

 

R
EQ

U
IR

ES
 M

A
JO

R
IT

Y
 V

O
TE

 

M
U

ST
 B

E 
SE

C
O

N
D

ED
 

O
U

T 
O

F 
O

R
D

ER
 W

H
EN

 A
N

O
TH

ER
H

A
S 

TH
E 

FL
O

O
R

  

Adjourn  No Yes No No Yes Yes Yes 

Adopt/Accept a Report  Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Adopt Constitutions, By-laws, and Rules of Order  Yes Yes Yes 1 Yes Yes Yes 

Adopt Standing Rules  Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Amend  2 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Amend an Amendment  2 Yes No Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Amend Constitution, By-laws, and Rules or Order  Yes Yes Yes 1 3 Yes Yes 

Amend Standing Rules  Yes Yes Yes Yes 4 Yes Yes 

Appeal (excluding Indecorum)  Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes No 

Debate, to Close, Limit or Extend  No Yes Yes Yes No Yes Yes 

Division of Assembly  No Yes No No Yes No No 

Division of Question  No Yes Yes No Yes 5 5 

Fix the Time to Adjourn  6 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Informal Consideration of Question  Yes Yes No 1 Yes Yes Yes 

Lay on the Table  No Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes 

Main Motion or Question  Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Nomination, to Make  Yes Yes No No Yes No Yes 

Nominations, to Close  No Yes Yes No No Yes Yes 

Nomination, to Re-open  No Yes Yes 1 Yes Yes Yes 

Objection to Consideration of a Question  No Yes No 1 7 No No 

95



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 58 

 

MOTION 

D
EB

A
TA

B
LE

 

D
EB

A
TE

 C
O

N
FI

N
ED

 T
O

 P
EN

D
IN

G
 

Q
U

ES
TI

O
N

 

C
A

N
 B

E 
A

M
EN

D
ED

 

C
A

N
 R

EC
O

N
SI

D
ER

 

R
EQ

U
IR

ES
 M

A
JO

R
IT

Y
 V

O
TE

 

M
U

ST
 B

E 
SE

C
O

N
D

ED
 

O
U

T 
O

F 
O

R
D

ER
 W

H
EN

 A
N

O
TH

ER
H

A
S 

TH
E 

FL
O

O
R

 

Order, Question of  No Yes No No Yes No No 

Order, to Make a Special  Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes Yes 

Orders of the Day, to Call for  No Yes No No Yes No No 

Parliamentary Inquire  No Yes No No Yes No No 

Postpone Definitely (to Certain Time)  Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Postpone Indefinitely  Yes No No 8 Yes Yes Yes 

Previous Question  No Yes No 9 No Yes Yes 

Privilege, to Raise Question of  No Yes No No Yes No No 

Recess, to Take a  6 Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes 

Reconsider  2 10 No No Yes Yes Yes 

Substitute (same as Amend)  Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Suspend the Rules  No Yes No No No Yes Yes 

Take from the Table  No Yes No No Yes Yes Yes 

Withdraw  No Yes No 1 Yes No Yes 
 

  

96



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 59 

 

FOOTNOTES TO TABLE OF ROBERT’S RULES OF ORDER 

a) An affirmative vote on this motion cannot be reconsidered.  

b) Undebatable when the motion to be amended, reconsidered, or rescinded is 

undebatable.  

c) Constitutions, By-Laws, and Rules of Order before adoption are in every respect main 

motion and may be amended by majority vote.  After adoption they require prior 

notice and two-thirds (2/3) vote for amendment.  

d) Standing Rules may be amended at any time by a majority vote if previous notice 

has been given, or by a two-thirds (2/3) vote without notice.  

e) If resolutions or propositions relate to different subjects that are independent of each 

other, they must be divided on the request of a single member, which may be made 

when another has the floor. If they relate to the same subject and yet each part can 

stand alone, they may be divided only on a regular motion and vote.  

f) Undebatable if made when another question is before the assembly.  

g) The objection can be made only when the question is first introduced, before debate.  

A two-thirds (2/3) vote must be opposed to the consideration in order to sustain the 

objection.  

h) Negative vote on this motion cannot be reconsidered.  

i) Cannot be reconsidered after a vote has been taken under it.  

j) Opens to debate main question when latter is debatable. 

 

 

 

 
 

97



Boards, Commissions and Committees Handbook  

3/3/2020 City of Wimberley Page 60 

 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT AND REVIEW OF 

HANDBOOK 

PLEASE READ ALL ASPECTS OF THIS HANDBOOK CAREFULLY 
 
This handbook is general guide for board, commission and committee 
volunteers. The City of Wimberley reserves the right to change the provisions 
of this handbook at any time and without prior notice. The provisions 
contained in this handbook are applicable to all board, commission and 
committee members. You are responsible for reading, and complying with, 
materials contained in this handbook and any revisions made to it. 
 
I have received a copy of this handbook, and I understand it is my duty to 
read the handbook and that the policies and procedures set forth therein apply 
to me and exclusively govern the terms and conditions of the duties and 
responsibilities to the City of Wimberley. 
 
I have read this handbook carefully and understand its contents. 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Name (print) 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Signature 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Date 
 

 

 

98



CITY OF WIMBERLEY, TEXAS 
ORGANIZATIONAL CHART 

 
 

City 
Administrator

City Secretary/
Municipal Court 

Clerk

Financial 
Clerk/Office 

Administration

Planning & 
Development 

Coordinator/GIS 
Analyst

Public 
Works/Code 
Enforcement 

Superintendent

Part-Time Public 
Works Assistant

Director of 
Wimberley 
Community 

Center

Part-Time Staff
(2 to 3)

Parks Operations 
& Programs 

Manager

Programs & Event 
Specialist

Part-Time Park 
Supervisors 

(6 to 8)

Part-Time Park 
Attendants 

(3 to 5)

Part-Time Camp 
Directors (2)

Part-Time Camp 
Counselors 

(8 to 10)

Parks Natural 
Resource & 
Maitenance 

Manager

Park Maintenance 
Specialists (2)

Citizenry/
Electorate

Mayor/
City Council

99



AGENDA FORM 

The City Administrator will provide an update regarding the Central Wimberley Wastewater Project; 
including updates on easements, construction, contracts and coordination with various State entities. 

Motion ☒

Discussion ☒

Ordinance ☐

Resolution ☐

Other ☒

Budgeted Item ☐

Non-budgeted Item ☐

Not Applicable ☒

Original Estimate/Budget:      $ 

Current Estimate:                 $ 

Amount Under/Over Budget: $

AGENDA ITEM: Central Wimberley Wastewater Project
Update 

SUBMITTED BY: Shawn Cox, City Administrator 

DATE SUBMITTED: March 3, 2020 

MEETING DATE: March 5, 2020 

ITEM DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY 

REQUESTED ACTION 

FINANCIAL 

ATTACHMENT(S) 

100


	Cover Page
	City Council Agenda 03-05-2020 (Reg)
	Consent Agenda 
	City Council Minutes 02-20-2020 (Reg)

	City Administrator Report
	Tacos El Tizon
	Tacos El Tizon Temporary Structure Application_Redacted

	2020 Park Guides
	Wimberley Spring and Summer Activity Guide

	2020 General Election Cancellation
	Certification of Unopposed Candidates 02-19-2020
	Ordinance Cancelling General Election 2020 0220

	City of Wimberley Board, Commission Committee Handbook 
	Boards - Commissions - Committees - Handbook (rev LC 2020)
	City of Wimberley Organizational Chart 2020 

	Central Wimberley Wastewater Project Update


